
                                                                             
  
   

 

 
Regular Session 

Council Agenda Packet 
September 21, 2023 

 
 



CITY OF CROWLEY 
CITY COUNCIL 

Council Regular Session 
September 21, 2023 

ATTENDANCE SHEET 
 
          Worksession Regular 
 

Council Member Johnny Shotwell, Place 1   _________ __________ 
 
Council Member Jerry Beck, Place 2    _________ __________ 
 
Council Member Jesse Johnson, Place 3   _________ __________ 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jim Hirth, Place 4    _________ __________ 
 
Vacant, Place 5       _________ __________ 
 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath, Place 6   _________ __________ 
 
Mayor Billy Davis       _________ __________ 

 
Staff:  
 

Robert Loftin, City Manager     _________ __________ 
 
Lori Watson, Finance Director/Deputy City Mgr   _________ __________ 
 
Jack Thompson, EDC Director/Asst City Mgr   _________ __________ 
 
Rob Allibon, City Attorney      _________ __________ 
 
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary     _________ __________ 
 
Pleasant Brooks, Fire Chief     _________ __________ 
 
Kit Long, Chief of Police      _________ __________ 
 
Mike Rocamontes, Public Works Director   _________ __________ 
 
Matt Elgin, Direct of Projects & Utilities    _________ __________ 
 
Rachel Roberts, Planning & Comm Dev Director  _________ __________ 
 
Cristina Winner, Community Services Director   _________ __________ 
 
Lisa Hansen, HR Administrator     _________ __________ 
 
Julie Hepler, Special Event Coordinator .   _________ __________ 
 
Jay Hinton, Media Relations     _________ __________ 



***An agenda information packet is available for public inspection in the Crowley Library and on the City website, under 
Agenda Packets*** 

Page 1 of 5 

 
Citizens may address the Council by filling out a blue “Citizen Participation” card to discuss any issue that is on 
the Agenda.  Please turn in cards to the City Secretary.  Speakers are limited to three minutes (if using a translator, 
the time limit will be doubled).   

WORK SESSION - September 21, 2023 - 6:30 pm 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

II. NON-ACTION ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
1. None.  

DISCUSSION OF ITEMS LISTED ON THE AGENDA 
III. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted 
by one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held September 7, 2023 and the 
Special Called meeting held on September 11, 2023. 

IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. Hold a Public Hearing and consider approval of the proposed Crowley Economic Development 4B 

FY 2023-24 Operating Budget. 
2. Hold a Public Hearing to receive input on the Operating Budget beginning October 1, 2023 and ending 

September 30, 2024. 
3. Hold a Public Hearing to receive input on the proposed 2023 ad valorem property tax rate. 
4. Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider approval of Ordinance 09-2023-507 for a specific use 

permit to allow a CBD/ Tobacco Shop in the General Commercial zoning district at 824 N Crowley 
Rd, whose legal description is John H. Lucas Survey, Abstract 932 Tract 1D07A, as requested by 7th 
Heaven LLC. 
 

V. CITY BUSINESS 
1. Discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 09-2023-504, an ordinance of the City of Crowley, Texas 

approving and adopting the budget for fiscal year 2023-24, beginning October 1, 2023 and ending 
September 30, 2024, providing a severability clause; and declaring an effective date. 

2. Consider and act upon the ratification of the property tax revenue increase reflected in the Proposed 
FY 2023-24 City of Crowley Operating Budget. 

3. Discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 09-2023-505, an ordinance of the City of Crowley, Texas 
affixing and levying Municipal Ad Valorem Taxes for the fiscal year 2023-24, beginning October 1, 
2023 and ending September 30, 2024, and for each year thereafter until otherwise provided on all 
taxable property within the corporate limits of the City of Crowley as of January 1, 2024 to provide 
revenues for the payment of current expenses and all outstanding debts of the city; directing the 
assessment thereof; providing for due dates and delinquent dates for payment of taxes together with 
penalties and interest thereon; providing for approval of the tax rolls presented to the City Council; 
repealing conflicting ordinances providing a severability clause and declaring an effective date. 

4. Discuss and consider approval of the Crime Control and Prevention District FY2023-24 Budget 
Amendment #1. 

5. Consider revisions to Pay Classification Plan. 

 AGENDA 
CROWLEY CITY COUNCIL 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2023 
WORK SESSION - 6:30 p.m. 

Crowley City Hall 
201 E. Main Street 
Crowley TX 76036 



***An agenda information packet is available for public inspection in the Crowley Library and on the City website, under 
Agenda Packets*** 

Page 2 of 5 

6. Discuss and consider adoption of Resolution R09-2023-399 of the City of Crowley amending the 
Staffing Plan. 

7. Discuss and consider approval of a request by Deer Creek Estates for a variance from city code 
Section 102-122, “Schedule for Permanent Signs” to allow a reader board sign in an R-2 single family 
residential zoning district. 

8. Discuss and consider approving Resolution R09-2023-398, a resolution approving a variance for an 
Alcoholic Beverage Permit Application submitted by Rouse Holding Group, LLC, for the business 
located at 117 S Texas St, known as Moon Tower Pizza and; authorizing the City Secretary to certify 
the TABC permit application. 

9. Discuss and consider canceling the Regular scheduled meeting of the Crowley City Council for 
October 5, 2023 due to lack of quorum. 

10. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance No 09-2023-506, amending Appendix A, Schedule of 
Rates, Fees, and Charges, Section (32) Public Records Charges, by increasing notary service fees and 
deleting obsolete or duplicated fees. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT  



***An agenda information packet is available for public inspection in the Crowley Library and on the City website, under 
Agenda Packets*** 

Page 3 of 5 

 
Citizens may address the Council by filling out a blue “Citizen Participation” card to discuss any issue that is on 
the Agenda.  Please turn in cards to the City Secretary.  Speakers are limited to three minutes (if using a translator, 
the time limit will be doubled).   

REGULAR SESSION - September 21, 2023 - 7:00 pm 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

II. INVOCATION 
 

III. PLEDGE TO ALLEGIANCE TO THE AMERICAN AND TEXAS FLAGS 
"I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America and to the Republic for which it stands, one nation, 
under God, indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for all." 
"Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state, under God, one and indivisible." 
IV. PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 

1. National Night Out Proclamation. 
2. Fire Prevention Week Proclamation. 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. 
There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda 
and will be considered separately. 

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held September 7, 2023 and the 
Special Called meeting held on September 11, 2023. 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. Hold a Public Hearing and consider approval of the proposed Crowley Economic Development 4B FY 

2023-24 Operating Budget. 
2. Hold a Public Hearing to receive input on the Operating Budget beginning October 1, 2023 and ending 

September 30, 2024. 
3. Hold a Public Hearing to receive input on the proposed 2023 ad valorem property tax rate. 
4. Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider approval of Ordinance 09-2023-507 for a specific use 

permit to allow a CBD/ Tobacco Shop in the General Commercial zoning district at 824 N Crowley Rd, 
whose legal description is John H. Lucas Survey, Abstract 932 Tract 1D07A, as requested by 7th Heaven 
LLC. 

VII. CITY BUSINESS 
1. Discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 09-2023-504, an ordinance of the City of Crowley, Texas 

approving and adopting the budget for fiscal year 2023-24, beginning October 1, 2023 and ending 
September 30, 2024, providing a severability clause; and declaring an effective date. 

2. Consider and act upon the ratification of the property tax revenue increase reflected in the Proposed 
FY 2023-24 City of Crowley Operating Budget. 

3. Discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 09-2023-505, an ordinance of the City of Crowley, Texas 
affixing and levying Municipal Ad Valorem Taxes for the fiscal year 2023-24, beginning October 1, 
2023 and ending September 30, 2024, and for each year thereafter until otherwise provided on all 
taxable property within the corporate limits of the City of Crowley as of January 1, 2024 to provide 
revenues for the payment of current expenses and all outstanding debts of the city; directing the 
assessment thereof; providing for due dates and delinquent dates for payment of taxes together with 

 AGENDA 
CROWLEY CITY COUNCIL 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2023 
REGULAR SESSION - 7:00 p.m. 

Crowley City Hall 
201 E. Main Street 
Crowley TX 76028 



***An agenda information packet is available for public inspection in the Crowley Library and on the City website, under 
Agenda Packets*** 

Page 4 of 5 

penalties and interest thereon; providing for approval of the tax rolls presented to the City Council; 
repealing conflicting ordinances providing a severability clause and declaring an effective date. 

4. Discuss and consider approval of the Crime Control and Prevention District FY2023-24 Budget 
Amendment #1. 

5. Consider revisions to Pay Classification Plan. 
6. Discuss and consider adoption of Resolution R09-2023-399 of the City of Crowley amending the 

Staffing Plan. 
7. Discuss and consider approval of a request by Deer Creek Estates for a variance from city code 

Section 102-122, “Schedule for Permanent Signs” to allow a reader board sign in an R-2 single family 
residential zoning district. 

8. Discuss and consider approving Resolution R09-2023-398, a resolution approving a variance for an 
Alcoholic Beverage Permit Application submitted by Rouse Holding Group, LLC, for the business 
located at 117 S Texas St, known as Moon Tower Pizza and; authorizing the City Secretary to certify 
the TABC permit application. 

9. Discuss and consider canceling the Regular scheduled meeting of the Crowley City Council for 
October 5, 2023 due to lack of quorum. 

10. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance No 09-2023-506, amending Appendix A, Schedule of 
Rates, Fees, and Charges, Section (32) Public Records Charges, by increasing notary service fees and 
deleting obsolete or duplicated fees. 

VIII. ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1. Reports 

None 
 

2. Appointments/Reappointments 
None 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT 
If you wish to make a public comment or discuss subjects not listed on the agenda, please fill out a (yellow) Visitor’s Participation 
card and submit to the City Secretary.  There will be no formal actions taken on subjects presented during public comments.  
Please NOTE council may NOT address or converse with you regarding a NON-AGENDA ITEM. The public comment period 
will only allow members of the public to present ideas and information to the City Officials and Staff.   
 

X. ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
Items of community interest include expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; information regarding 
holiday schedules; honorary recognitions of city officials, employees or citizens; reminders about upcoming 
events sponsored by the city or other entity that is scheduled to be attended by a city official or employee; and 
announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety 
 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Pursuant to Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, the Council reserves the right to convene in Executive 
Session(s), from time to time as deemed necessary during this meeting for any posted agenda item to receive 
advice from its attorney as permitted by law, or to discuss the following as permitted by Government Code: 

1. Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) 
2. Section 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property) 
3. Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters) 
4. Section 551.087 (Business Prospect/Economic Development) 

 

XII. RECONVENE AND TAKE ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Reconvene into open session and take any necessary action resulting from items posted and legally discussed in Closed Session. 
 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 



***An agenda information packet is available for public inspection in the Crowley Library and on the City website, under 
Agenda Packets*** 

Page 5 of 5 

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that this Agenda of the City Council Meeting to be held on Thursday, September 7, 2023, 
of the governing body of the City of Crowley is a true and correct copy posted on ____________________, 20____ at _________ am/ pm 
to the City Website and at Crowley City Hall, a place convenient and readily accessible to the public at all times. 
 

City of Crowley 
 

______________________________________ 
Carol C. Konhauser, City Secretary 

NOTICE:  A quorum of the Crime Control and Prevention District Board of Directors and the Economic Development Board of Directors 
will be present at this meeting; however, neither Board will take action on any items on this posted agenda. 

THE CITY COUNCIL RESERVES THE RIGHT OF THE FOLLOWING: 
1.  ITEMS DO NOT HAVE TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE SAME ORDER AS SHOWN ON THIS AGENDA; 
2. THE COUNCIL MAY CONTINUE OR RECESS ITS DELIBERATIONS TO THE NEXT CALENDAR DAY IF IT DEEMS IT NECESSARY. 
The Crowley City Hall is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations must be made 48 hours prior 
to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary’s Office at (817) 297-2201 ext. 4000, or email ckonhauser@ci.crowley.tx.us for further information. 



 

                                                     

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the National Association of Town Watch (NATW) sponsors a national 
community-building campaign on Tuesday, October 3, 2023, entitled “National 
Night Out”; and  

WHEREAS, the National Night Out campaign provides an opportunity for neighbors 
in Crowley to join over 38 million neighbors across 17 thousand communities from 
all 50 states, U.S. territories and military bases worldwide; and  

WHEREAS, National Night Out is an annual community-building campaign that 
promotes strong police-community partnerships and neighborhood camaraderie 
to make our neighborhoods safer, more caring places to live and work; and  

WHEREAS, neighbors in Crowley assist the Crowley Police Department through 
joint community-building efforts and support National Night Out 2023; and  

WHEREAS, it is essential that all neighbors of Crowley come together with police 
and work together to build a safer, more caring community; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Crowley City Council does hereby invite the residents of the 
City of Crowley to join the Crowley Police Department, National Association of 
Town Watch, and millions of Texans in supporting the "2023 National Night Out" 
on Tuesday, October 3, 2023, and do hereby proclaim Tuesday, October 3, 2023, as 
"National Night Out" in the City of Crowley. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of 
Crowley to be affixed this 21st day of September, 2023. 

 
 
       ______________________ 
       Billy Davis, Mayor 



OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS 

Proclamation 
Fire Prevention Week 

October 8 – October 14, 2023 
 

Whereas, the City of Crowley, Texas is committed to ensuring the safety and security of all those 
living in and visiting Crowley; and 

Whereas, fire is a serious public safety concern both locally and nationally, and homes are where 
people are at greatest risk from fire; and 

Whereas, home fires killed 2,800 people in the United States in 2021, according to the National 
Fire Protection Association (NFPA), and fire departments in the United States responded to 338,000 home 
fires; and 

Whereas, cooking is the leading cause of home fires in the United States and fire departments 
responded to more than 166,400 annually between 2016 and 2020; and 

Whereas, two of every five home fires start in the kitchen with 31% of these fires resulting from 
unattended cooking; and 

Whereas, more than half of reported non-fatal home cooking fire injuries occurred when the victims 
tried to fight the fire themselves; and 

Whereas, children under five face a higher risk of non-fire burns associated with cooking than being 
burned in a cooking fire; and 

Whereas, Crowley residents should turn pot handles toward the back of the stove; always keep a 
lid nearby when cooking; keep a three-foot kid-free zone around the stove, oven, and other things that could 
get hot; watch what they heat; and set a timer to remind them that they are cooking; and 

Whereas, residents who have planned and practiced a home fire escape plan are more prepared 
and will therefore be more likely to survive a fire; and 

Whereas, working smoke alarms cut the risk of dying in reported home fires almost in half; and 

Whereas, Crowley first responders are dedicated to reducing the occurrence of home fires and 
home fire injuries through prevention and protection education; and 

Whereas, Crowley residents are responsive to public education measures and are able to take 
personal steps to increase their safety from fire, especially in their homes; and 

Whereas, the 2023 Fire Prevention Week theme, “Cooking safety starts with YOU. Pay attention 
to fire prevention” effectively serves to remind us to stay alert and use caution when cooking to reduce the 
risk of kitchen fires. 

Now, therefore the Crowley City Council does hereby proclaim October 8-14, 2023, as Fire 
Prevention Week throughout this City, and urges all the people of Crowley to check their kitchens for fire 
hazards and use safe cooking practices during Fire Prevention Week 2023, and to support the many public 
safety activities and efforts of Crowley’s fire and emergency services. 
 
Signed on this the 21st day of September, 2023. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Billy Davis, Mayor 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Carol Konhauser 
City Secretary MEETING DATE: September 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: V-1 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held 
September 7, 2023 and the Special Called meeting on September 11, 2023. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

Consider approval of minutes as presented. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval of the minutes as presented; council consideration is respectfully requested. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

Approval of the minutes does not affect the budget. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  Minutes 
 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 11, 2023  Page | 1 of 1 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED SESSION HELD SEPTEMBER 11, 
2023.  The City Council of the City of Crowley, Texas met in a Special Called Session on Monday, 
September 11, 2023, at 6:00 pm in the City Council Chambers, 201 East Main Street, Crowley City Hall, 
Crowley, Texas. 
 
Present were  Mayor Billy P. Davis 
 Council Member Jerry Beck, City Council Place 2 
 Council Member Jesse Johnson, City Council Place 3 
 Council Member Jim Hirth, City Council Place 4 
 Vacant Place 5 
 Council Member Scott Gilbreath, City Council Place 6 
 

City staff included:   City Manager Robert Loftin 
 Deputy City Mngr/Finance Director, Lori Watson 
  

Absent: Mayor Pro-Tem Johnny Shotwell, City Council Place 1 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
Mayor Billy Davis called the Special Called Session to order at 6:01 p.m.  City Secretary Carol Konhauser 
called roll and noted a quorum was present.   
 
CITY BUSINESS 

 
1. Mayor to announce the date, time and place of the public hearing on the proposed FY 2023-

24 Annual Operating Budget. 
 

Mayor Billy Davis announced the date, time and place of the public hearing on the proposed FY2023-24 
Annual Operating Budget which would be on September 21, 2023 at 7:00pm located in the Council 
Chambers at City Hall, 201 E Main Street, Crowley TX, 76036. 
 

2. Mayor to announce the date, time and place of the public hearing on the 2023 proposed tax 
rate. 
 
Mayor Billy Davis announced the date, time and place of the public hearing on the proposed tax 
rate would be on September 21, 2023 at 7:00pm located in the Council Chambers at City Hall, 201 
E Main Street, Crowley TX, 76036. 
 

3. Mayor to announce the date, time and place of the public hearing on the proposed FY 2023-
24 Economic Development Corporation Budget. 
 
Mayor Billy Davis announced the date, time and place of the public hearing on the proposed 
FY2023-24 Economic Development Corporation Budget which would be on September 21, 2023 
at 7:00pm located in the Council Chambers at City Hall, 201 E Main Street, Crowley TX, 76036. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
As there was no further business, Mayor Billy Davis adjourned the meeting at 6:04 p.m. 
 

          ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Billy Davis, Mayor     Carol C. Konhauser, City Secretary 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 7, 2023  Page | 1 of 4 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION HELD SEPTEMBER 7, 2023.  The City 
Council of the City of Crowley, Texas met in Work Session on Thursday, September 7, 2023, at 6:30 pm 
in the City Council Chambers, 201 East Main Street, Crowley City Hall, Crowley, Texas. 
 
Present were  Mayor Billy P. Davis 
 Council Member Jerry Beck, City Council Place 2 
 Council Member Jesse Johnson, City Council Place 3 
 Council Member Jim Hirth, City Council Place 4 
 Vacant Place 5 
 Council Member Scott Gilbreath, City Council Place 6 
 

City staff included:   City Manager Robert Loftin 
 Deputy City Mngr/Finance Director, Lori Watson 
 Asst City Mngr/EDC Director, Jack Thompson 
 City Attorney, Rob Allibon 
 City Secretary, Carol Konhauser 
 Fire Chief, Pleasant Brooks 
 Police Chief, Kit Long 
 Public Works Director, Mike Rocamontes 
 Director of Projects & Utilities, Matt Elgin 
 Planning and Comm Dev Director, Rachel Roberts 
 Community Services Director, Cristina Winner 
  

Absent: Mayor Pro-Tem Johnny Shotwell, City Council Place 1 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
Mayor Billy Davis called the Work Session to order at 6:30 p.m.  City Secretary Carol Konhauser called 
roll and noted a quorum was present.   
 
DISCUSSION OF NON-ACTION ITEMS 

1. None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by 
one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held August 17, 2023.   
2. Receive and accept the Quarterly Investment Report(s) - 4th Qtr 2022, 1st Qtr 2023, and 2nd Qtr 

2023. 
No discussion.   
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
1. None. 

 
 

CITY BUSINESS 
 

1. Discuss and consider authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute an Amendment to 
the Wholesale Water Contract between the City of Crowley and the City of Fort Worth, to 
participate in a joint expansion project for Water Main Improvement and Extension. 
 

No discussion 
 

2. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance 09-2023-502, an ordinance amending sub-sections 
29, 30, and 31 of Appendix A, Rates, Fees and Charges of the Code of Ordinance for library, 
parks, and recreation services. 
 
No discussion 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 7, 2023  Page | 2 of 4 

 
3. Discuss and consider Special Event Permit application for the Crowley High School 

Homecoming Parade to be held on Wednesday, October 4, 2023. 
 
No discussion 
 

4. Discuss and consider adoption of Resolution R09-2023-397 declaring certain property as 
surplus to the City’s needs; authorizing its sale; providing an effective date and authorizing 
staff to place surplus items from the city for auction. 
 
No discussion 
 

5. Discuss and Consider approval of Ordinance No. 09-2023-503 amending Appendix A, 
schedule of rates, fees, and charges, of the code of Ordinances to update the fees associated 
with Emergency Medical Servies listed under Section (27) "Public Safety and Health 
Charges." 
 
No discussion 
 

6. Approve appointment of the Chair and Vice-Chair for the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
No discussion 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
As there was no further business to discuss, the work session was adjourned at 6:35 pm. 
  



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 7, 2023  Page | 3 of 4 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION HELD SEPTEMBER 7, 2023. The City 
Council of the City of Crowley, Texas met in Regular Session on Thursday, September 7, 2023, at 7:00 pm 
in the City Council Chambers, 201 East Main Street, Crowley City Hall, Crowley, Texas. 
 
Present were  Mayor Billy P. Davis 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Johnny Shotwell, City Council Place 1 
 Council Member Jerry Beck, City Council Place 2 
 Council Member Jesse Johnson, City Council Place 3 
 Council Member Jim Hirth, City Council Place 4 
 Vacant Place 5 
 Council Member Scott Gilbreath, City Council Place 6 
 

City staff included:   City Manager Robert Loftin 
 Deputy City Mngr/Finance Director, Lori Watson 
 Asst City Mngr/EDC Director, Jack Thompson 
 City Attorney, Rob Allibon 
 City Secretary, Carol Konhauser 
 Fire Chief, Pleasant Brooks 
 Police Chief, Kit Long 
 Public Works Director, Mike Rocamontes 
 Director of Projects & Utilities, Matt Elgin 
 Planning and Comm Dev Director, Rachel Roberts 
 Community Services Director, Cristina Winner 
  

Absent: None 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
Mayor Billy Davis called the Regular Session to order at 7:00 p.m.  City Secretary Carol Konhauser called 
roll and noted a quorum was present. 
 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Invocation was given by Council Member Jesse Johnson followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
American and Texas Flags. 
 

PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 
1. None  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. 
There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda 
and will be considered separately. 
 

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held August 17, 2023. 
2. Receive and accept the Quarterly Investment Report(s) - 4th Qtr 2022, 1st Qtr 2023, and 2nd 

Qtr 2023. 
Council Member Jim Hirth made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda item(s), second by Council 
Member Jerry Beck; council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0.  
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
1. None. 

 

CITY BUSINESS 
1. Discuss and consider authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute an Amendment to 

the Wholesale Water Contract between the City of Crowley and the City of Fort Worth, to 
participate in a joint expansion project for Water Main Improvement and Extension. 

Council Member Jim Hirth made the motion to approve the Amendment to the Wholesale Water Contract 
between the City of Crowley and Fort Worth; second by Council Member Scott Gilbreath, council voted  



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – September 7, 2023  Page | 4 of 4 

unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0.   
 

2. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance 09-2023-502, an ordinance amending sub-sections 
29, 30, and 31 of Appendix A, Rates, Fees and Charges of the Code of Ordinance for library, 
parks, and recreation services. 
 

Council Member Jesse Johnson made the motion to approve Ordinance 09-2023-502; second by Council 
Member Jim Hirth, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

3. Discuss and consider Special Event Permit application for the Crowley High School 
Homecoming Parade to be held on Wednesday, October 4, 2023. 
 

Council Member Jerry Beck made the motion to approve the Special Event Application for the Crowley 
HS Homecoming Parade; second by Council Member Jesse Johnson, council voted unanimously to 
approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

4. Discuss and consider adoption of Resolution R09-2023-397 declaring certain property as 
surplus to the City’s needs; authorizing its sale; providing an effective date and authorizing 
staff to place surplus items from the city for auction. 
 

Council Member Jim Hirth made the motion to approve Resolution R09-2023-397; second by Council 
Member Jerry Beck, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

5. Discuss and Consider approval of Ordinance No. 09-2023-503 amending Appendix A, 
schedule of rates, fees, and charges, of the code of Ordinances to update the fees associated 
with Emergency Medical Servies listed under Section (27) "Public Safety and Health 
Charges." 
 

Council Member Jesse Johnson made the motion to approve Ordinance 09-2023-503; second by Council 
Member Jerry Beck, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

6. Approve appointment of the Chair and Vice-Chair for the Planning & Zoning Commission.. 
 
Council Member Jesse Johnson made the motion to approve the appointments to the Chair and Vice-Chair 
of the Planning and Zoning Commission; second by Council Member Jim Hirth, council voted 
unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS  
Reports/appointments or reappointments. 
1. Reports: 

None 
2. Appointments/Reappointments: 

None. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mayor Davis asked if there were any citizens or visitors wishing to speak.   
 
Matt Foster, representing the Chamber of Commerce, stepped up and reminded everyone about the 
upcoming quarter luncheon for the Chamber. 
 

ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
 

Mayor Davis then asked if there were any community interest items.   
 
As there was no further business, Mayor Billy Davis adjourned the meeting at 7:09 p.m. 
 

          ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Billy Davis, Mayor     Carol C. Konhauser, City Secretary 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Lori Watson MEETING DATE: September 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Deputy CM AGENDA ITEM: VI-1 

SUBJECT: Hold a Public Hearing and consider approval of the proposed Crowley 
Economic Development 4B FY 2023-24 Operating Budget.   
 

COORDINATION: 

Finance LW City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

Pursuant to the Texas Local Government Code 501.073 the corporation’s authorizing unit will approve 
all programs and expenditures of the corporation and annually review any financial statements of the 
corporation.   

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval. 

FISCAL INFORMATION:  

The 2023-24 Operating budget includes projected revenues of $1,508,000.  The total expenditures are 
$1,324,292.  The revenue over expenses is $183,708.   

ATTACHMENTS:  

● EDC 4B FY2023-24 Operating Budget 
 



Revenues:

Sales Tax Revenue 1,500,000     
Interest Income 8,000            

Total Revenue 1,508,000  

Expenses:
Salary Expense 232,993               
Fica 14,446                 
Med 3,378                   
TMRS 28,495                 
Health insurance 20,565                 
Office Supplies 2,500                   
Training 18,000                 
Ground Lease (parking lot) 15,000                 
Professional Fees 17,000                 
Attorney Fees 10,000                 
Mobile Telephone Services 3,200                   
Advertising 6,000                   
Service Contracts 63,000                 
Subscriptions & Publications 6,300                   
Dues & Memberships 4,440                   
Printing & Reproduction 3,000                   
Other Materials & Supplies 3,400                   

Total 451,717        

Bond Payments
Revenue Bond 2016 Principal 145,000               
Revenue Bond 2016 Interest 63,250                 
2018 CO Bond Principal 165,000               
2018 CO Bond Interest 130,375               
2020 CO Bond Principal 115,000               
2020 CO Bond Interest 98,950                 

Total 717,575        

One Time Purchases:
Laptop for Downtown Coordinator 3,000                   
Office Furniture and Equipment 2,000                   
Additional Christmas Decorations 150,000               

Total 155,000        

Total Expenses 1,324,292  

Revenues over (under) expenses 183,708     

Budget Includes:
Recurring Expenditure for Christmas Décor
Addition of Downtown Coordinator Position
Increase in funding of ACM/EDC director

Economic Development Corporation 2023-24 Budget



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Lori Watson MEETING DATE: September 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Deputy CM AGENDA ITEM: VI-2 

SUBJECT: Hold a Public Hearing to receive input on the Operating Budget beginning 
October 1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

Council held a special budget work session on August 8, 2023 at 6:00 pm and staff presented the 
proposed FY 2023-24 Operating budget.  The budget includes revenues that the $0.594890/$100 tax 
rate would generate.  The General Fund revenue is proposed at $ 17,488,032 and expenditures at 
$17,483,700, leaving a balance of $4,332.  The Debt Service fund proposed revenue of $2,271,498 and 
expenditures of $2,465,780, resulting in a shortage of $194,282 to be paid from prior year excess 
collections.  The Water & Sewer Fund proposed revenue is $7,973,450 and expenses of $7,969,863, 
resulting in a surplus of $3,587.  The Stormwater Fund revenues are $588,000, and expenditures of 
$383,525, resulting in a surplus of $204,475.   

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

FISCAL INFORMATION:  

Establish Operating Budget for FY 2023-24 

ATTACHMENTS:  

● Budget Summaries 2023-24 
 



Exhibit A

City of Crowley

Operating Budget

2023-24

This budget will raise more total property taxes than
last year's budget by $896,128 or 9.2%. The property tax
revenue to be raised from new property added to the tax 

roll this year is $231,398.



Revenue:
Tax Receipts 11,137,208$      
Permit Fees 710,593            
Intergovernmental 1,008,666          
Fines and Fees 1,256,237          
Charges for Services 2,129,098          
Other Income 1,041,913          

Total Revenues 17,283,715$   

Expenditures:
Non Departmental 1,998,524$        
Administration 747,127            
Municipal Court 268,541            
Library 692,100            
Senior Center 34,435              
Police Dept 4,373,324          
Fire Dept 4,533,341          
Public Works 706,570            
Parks 486,168            
Animal Control 358,374            
Community Development 574,422            
Code Enforcement 93,977              
Finance 425,838            
Recreation Center 738,964            
Community Center 15,049              

Total Expenditures 16,046,754$   

Revenues over/(under) Expenditures 1,236,961$     

2022-23 Estimated Revenues over Expenditures 1,236,961$     
This estimate includes a One time incentive payment of $2,000 for full time employees and 
prorated amounts for part time employees.  
Items to be purchased:
Admin Laptop 3,150                
Admin Workstation & Laptop for IT Analyst 6,075                
Admin Desk Chair for IT Analyst 350                   
Comm Dev Desk for Permits Office 4,000                
Fire Workout Equipment for Station 2 27,864              
Fire Cameras & Access Control * 30,968              
Library Laptops for Staff 3,320                
Library Hardware upgrades for Public Computers 3,030                
Library Public Laptops for Adult Education (12) 4,980                
Library Door Access Sytem 9,660                
Non Dept Server 2,738                
Non Dept Microsoft Server & Licensing 11,750              

General Fund 
2022-23 Year End



Non Dept Network Switches 6,650                
Non Dept Ricoh IM C8000 Copier/Printer/Fax/Scanner 19,297              
Parks Scoreboards 21,545              
Parks Ford F150 Truck 40,827              
Parks 61" Zero Turn Mowers (2) 35,566              
Parks Split Rail Fence for Teeter Park 10,260              
Police Server 2,738                
Police
Police Ricoh IM C4500 Copier/Printer/Fax/Scanner 10,154              
Public Works Tires for unit 858 2,382                
Public Works Traffic Control Devices (25 new 36"cones) 1,075                
Public Works West Main Street Pavement Striping 9,882                
Public Works Traffic Control Signage, LED Sign Retrofit 25,925              
Public Works Fuel Dispenser Replacement 19,990              
Public Works Fuel Storage Tank Reconfiguration 14,725              
Rec Center Employee Breakroom 4,225                
Rec Center Directional signs for Egg Hunt 1,159                
Rec Center Digital Sign 2,906                
Rec Center Children's furniture and Equipment 2,641                
Rec Center Honeywell Alarm System 10,343              

350,175$        

886,786$        

Total Requests

Remaining Revenue over Expenditures



Revenue:
Tax Receipts 12,274,290$      
Permit Fees 721,716            
Intergovernmental 1,056,841         
Fines and Fees 705,730            
Charges for Services 2,205,455         
Other Income 524,000            

Total Revenues 17,488,032$      

Expenditures:
Non Departmental 2,073,351$       
Administration 1,059,931         
Municipal Court 267,588            
Library 675,350            
Senior Center 81,398              
Police Dept 4,789,245         
Fire Dept 5,102,095         
Public Works 859,177            
Parks 486,141            
Animal Control 365,872            
Community Development 483,871            
Code Enforcement 92,687              
Finance 330,261            
Recreation Center 802,380            
Community Center 14,353              

Total Expenditures 17,483,700$      

Revenues over/(under) Expenditures 4,332$              

Included in the 2023-24 Budget:
Personnel:
IT Analyst
Library Services Manager
Library Senior Level Clerk

Senior Center Coordinator moved from Part time to full time
Police - Two patrol Officers, One Traffic Officer (to be funded from Crime Control)

Code Compliance Officer moved from Sworn to General PCP
Fire Department - 4 Battalion Chief positions (three firefighters to replace BC promotions)

and 3 additional FTO positions
Public Works - Two PW Maintenance positions
Parks- One Parks Maintenance position
Finance - One Senior Staff Accountant
3% Raise for all employees (including increasing the public safety step plan)

General Fund 
2023-24 Budget



Increases and adjustments for City Management changes

Capital & Enhancements:
Admin Employee Appreciation Awards Banquet 4,284        
Admin Service and Incentive Awards 3,800        
Senior Center Enviro Masters Services 1,989        
Senior Center Program Costs 2,800        
Public Works Excavator and Loader Maintenance 1,477        
Comm Dev Plan Review Module 4,693        
Rec Center Clean up Crowley 1,800        
Rec Center Summer Program Costs 4,000        
Library Media and Materials 5,000        
Fire Medical Screening 20,640      
Fire Workout Equipment 27,864      
Public Works HA 5 Sealant 136,727    
Comm Dev Aerial Imagery Nearmap 3,000        
Comm Dev Update Comprehensive Plan 25,000      
Rec Center Annual Parade 17,761      



Revenue:

Taxes 2,475,500$   
Total Revenues 2,475,500$      

Expenditures:
Debt Service 2,391,847$   

Total Expenditures 2,391,847$      

Revenues over/(under) Expenditures 83,653$           

Debt Service Fund
2022-23 Year End



Revenue:

Taxes 2,271,498$   
Total Revenues 2,271,498$      

Expenditures:
Debt Service 2,465,780$   

Total Expenditures 2,465,780$      

Revenues over/(under) Expenditures (194,282)$        

Debt Service Fund
2023-24 Budget



Revenue:

Charges for Services 8,052,156$   
Other Income 47,750          

Total Revenues 8,099,906$      

Expenses:
Debt Service 1,307,563$   
Non-Departmental 949,218        
Customer Service 331,568        
Water 3,212,461     
Sewer 1,605,955     

Total Expenses 7,406,765$      

Revenues over/(under) Expenses 693,141$     

Includes a One time payment of $2,000 for every full time employee
and prorated for part time. 

Water & Sewer Fund
2022-23 Year End



Revenue:

Charges for Services 7,932,150$   
Other Income 41,300          

Total Revenues 7,973,450$      

Expenses:
Debt Service 1,036,544$   
Non-Departmental 959,573        
Customer Service 339,967        
Water 3,742,060     
Sewer 1,891,719     

Total Expenses 7,969,863$      

Revenues over/(under) Expenses 3,587$             

Included in the 2023-24 Budget:
Water Maintenance Foreman
3% Raise for all employees
Cust Svc Workstation 1,755            
Water  CDL Training 10,400          
Water Soil Compaction Equip 2,996            
Water Surface Pro Tablet 3,230            
Water Conference Room Workstation 2,629            
Water Surveillance Cameras 9,390            
Water Ford F150 (2) 81,630          
Water Meter Modernization Program 245,048        
Water Workstation Upgrade 7,180            
Water Workstation Upgrade 4,670            
Sewer Rotary Brush Cutter 10,992          
Sewer Sewer Line Slip Lining Project 181,000        
Sewer Sewer Line Replacement Peach to Oak 30,000          
Sewer Sewer Manhole Reconditioning 25,000          

9

Water & Sewer Fund
2023-24 Budget



Revenue:

Charges for Services 586,000$   
Total Revenues 586,000$         

Expenses:
Non Departmental 291,245$   

Total Expenses 291,245$         

Revenues over/(under) Expenses 294,755$         

Stormwater Fund
2022-23 Year End 



Revenue:

Charges for Services 588,000$   
Total Revenues 588,000$         

Expenses:
Non Departmental 383,525$   

Total Expenses 383,525$         

Revenues over/(under) Expenses 204,475$         

Included in the 2023-24 Budget:
Sidewalk Sweeper 33,104       
Stormwater Mgmt Plan 15,450       
 and MS4 Renewal

Stormwater Fund
2023-24 Budget



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Lori Watson MEETING DATE: September 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Deputy CM AGENDA ITEM: VI-3 

SUBJECT: Hold a Public Hearing to receive input on the proposed 2023 ad valorem 
property tax rate.   

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

Hold a public hearing to receive public input on the proposed 2023 Tax Rate of $0.594890/$100.   

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

FISCAL INFORMATION:  

The average taxable value of a residence in the City of Crowley for 2022 was $212,160.  Based on last 
year’s tax rate of $0.645203/$100, the amount of taxes imposed last year was $1,368. 
 
The average taxable value of a residence in the City of Crowley for 2023 is $245,680. If the governing 
body adopts the proposed tax rate of $0.594890/$100, the amount of taxes imposed would be $1,461. 
 
If the governing body adopts the proposed no-new-tax rate of $.556294/$100, the amount of taxes 
imposed this year on the average home would be $1,367. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

● 2023 Tax Rate Public Hearing Notice 
 



(name of taxing unit) 

(name of taxing unit) 

(name of taxing unit) (name of taxing unit) 

(name of taxing unit) (name of taxing unit) 

(name of taxing unit) 

(name of taxing unit) 

(date and time) 

(current tax year) 

(meeting place) 

(name of taxing unit) 

(name of taxing unit) 

(name of taxing unit) 

(name of taxing unit) 

(current tax year) 

(current tax year) (preceding tax year) 

Form 50-875 

  
 

 

 

  

  

 

    

    

     

   

  

 

  

Statements required in notice if the proposed tax rate exceeds the no-new-revenue tax rate and the voter-approval tax rate but does not exceed the de 
minimis rate, as prescribed by Tax Code §§26.06(b-1) and 26.063(c). 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON TAX INCREASE 

This notice only applies to a taxing unit other than a special taxing unit or municipality  

A tax rate of $_______________________________________ per $100 valuation has been proposed by the governing body of 

_________________________________________________.

 PROPOSED TAX RATE $___________________ per $100

$NO-NEW-REVENUE TAX RATE ___________________ per $100

$VOTER-APPROVAL TAX RATE ___________________ per $100

 DE MINIMIS RATE $ __________________ per $100 

The no-new-revenue tax rate is the tax rate for the _______________________________ tax year that will raise the same amount 

of property tax revenue for __________________________________________________  from the same properties in both 

the ________________________ tax year and the _______________________ tax year. 

The voter-approval rate is the highest tax rate that __________________________________________ may adopt without holding 

an election to seek voter approval of the rate, unless the de minimis rate for _________________________________ exceeds the 

voter-approval rate for ___________________________________. 

The de minimis rate is the rate equal to the sum of the no-new-revenue maintenance and operations rate for __________________, 

the rate that will raise $500,000, and the current debt rate for __________________________. 

The proposed tax rate is greater than the no-new-revenue tax rate. This means that ___________________________ is proposing 

to increase property taxes for the _________________ tax year. 

A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED TAX RATE WILL BE HELD ON _______________________________ 

at __________________________________________________________________________________. 

The proposed tax rate is greater than the voter-approval tax rate but not greater than the de minimis rate. However, the proposed 

tax rate exceeds the rate that allows voters to petition for an election under Section 26.075, Tax Code. If ____________________ 

adopts the proposed tax rate, the qualified voters of the ________________________ may petition the ______________________ 

to require an election to be held to determine whether to reduce the proposed tax rate. If a majority of the voters reject the proposed 

tax rate, the tax rate of the ____________________ will be the voter-approval tax rate of the _______________________. 

YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE TAX RATES MENTIONED ABOVE CAN BE CALCULATED AS FOLLOWS: 

Property tax amount = ( tax rate ) x ( taxable value of your property ) / 100 

(List names of all members of the governing body below, showing how each voted on the proposal to consider the tax increase or, if one or more were absent, 
indicating absences.) 
FOR the proposal: _____________________________________________________________________ 

AGAINST the proposal: _________________________________________________________________ 

PRESENT and not voting: _______________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:  ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Form developed by: Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, Property Tax Assistance Division For additional copies, visit: comptroller.texas.gov/taxes/property-tax
                                                                                                   50-875 • Rev.4-22/3

https://comptroller.texas.gov/taxes/property-tax


(name of taxing unit) 

(name of taxing unit) 

Notice of Public Hearing on Tax Increase Form 50-875

For additional copies, visit: comptroller.texas.gov/taxes/property-tax Page 2   

The 86th Texas Legislature modified the manner in which the voter-approval tax rate is calculated to limit the rate of growth of prop-
erty taxes in the state. 

The following table compares the taxes imposed on the average residence homestead by __________________________ last year 

to the taxes proposed to the be imposed on the average residence homestead by ________________________________ this year. 

Total tax rate (per 
$100 of value) 

Average 
homestead taxable 
value 

Tax on average 
homestead 

Total tax levy on 
all properties 

Change20232022



(county name) 

(amount minus any amount received from state revenue for such costs ) 

(county name) 

(county name) 

(county name) 

(If the tax assessor for the taxing unit maintains an internet website) 

For assistance with tax calculations, please contact the tax assessor for __________________________________________ 

at _____________________________ or ______________________________, or visit ______________________________ 

for more information. 

(If the tax assessor for the taxing unit does not maintain an internet website) 

For assistance with tax calculations, please contact the tax assessor for __________________________________________ 

at _____________________________ or ______________________________. 

on indigent health care compensation procedures at the increased minimum eligibility standards, less the amount of state 

assistance. 

For current tax year, the amount of increase above last year’s enhanced indigent health care expenditures is $ _______________. 

This increased the no-new-revenue maintenance and operations rate by _______________ /$100. 

Indigent Defense Compensation Expenditures (counties) 

The ___________________________________ spent $ __________ from July 1 ______________to June 30 _________________ 

to provide appointed counsel for indigent individuals in criminal or civil proceedings in accordance with the schedule of fees 

adopted under Article 26.05, Code of Criminal Procedure, and to fund the operations of a public defender's office under Article 

26.044, Code of Criminal Procedure, less the amount of any state grants received. For current tax year, the amount of increase 

above last year’s enhanced indigent defense compensation expenditures is $ _______________. 

This increased the no-new-revenue maintenance and operations rate by _______________ /$100. 

Eligible County Hospital Expenditures (cities and counties) 

The ___________________________________ spent $ __________ from July 1 ______________to June 30 _________________ 

on expenditures to maintain and operate an eligible county hospital. 

For current tax year, the amount of increase above last year’s eligible county hospital expenditures is $ _______________. 

This increased the no-new-revenue maintenance and operations rate by _______________ /$100. 

(name of taxing unit)    

(name of taxing unit)    

(name of taxing unit)    

(amount of increase) 

(amount of increase) 

(amount of increase) 

(amount)    

(amount)    

(amount)    

(prior year) 

(prior year) 

(prior year) 

(current year) 

(current year) 

(current year) 

(telephone number) 

(telephone number) 

(internet website address) 

(name of taxing unit) 

(name of taxing unit) 

(email address) 

(email address) 

(Include the following text if these no-new-revenue maintenance and operations rate adjustments apply for the taxing unit) 

No-New-Revenue Maintenance and Operations Rate Adjustments 

State Criminal Justice Mandate (counties) 

The __________________________________________ County Auditor certifies that ___________________________ County has 

spent $_____________________________________________ in the previous 12 months for the maintenance and operations cost 

of keeping inmates sentenced to the Texas Department of Criminal Justice.  ______________________________________ County 

Sheriff has provided __________________________________________ information on these costs, minus the state revenues 

received for the reimbursement of such costs. 

This increased the no-new-revenue maintenance and operations rate by _______________ /$100. 

Indigent Health Care Compensation Expenditures (counties) 

The ___________________________________ spent $ __________ from July 1 ______________to June 30 _________________ 

Notice of Public Hearing on Tax Increase Form 50-875

For additional copies, visit: comptroller.texas.gov/taxes/property-tax e 2

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

    PagPage 3 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

PRESENTER: Rachel Roberts MEETING 
DATE: September 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development AGENDA ITEM: VI-4 

SUBJECT: Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider approval of Ordinance 09-2023-
507 for a specific use permit to allow a CBD/ Tobacco Shop in the General 
Commercial zoning district at 824 N Crowley Rd, whose legal description is 
John H. Lucas Survey, Abstract 932 Tract 1D07A, as requested by 7th Heaven 
LLC. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev RR PW ME/MR 
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  EDC: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD MT FD CS Admin: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

 

Request SUP to allow a CBD/ Tobacco/ Vape Shop 

Applicant 7th Heaven LLC (tenant) 

Location 824 N Crowley Rd. 

Surrounding Uses Primarily commercial, including a bar & grill, convenience store, 
and personal services. 

Surrounding Zoning General Commercial, Manufactured HUD, and Industrial 

Future Land Use Plan Designation Traditional Suburban Commercial 

Planning & Zoning Commission 
Recommendation Approve 

 
The applicant is requesting the city allow a CBD/ Tobacco/ Vape shop at 824 N Crowley Rd. This property 
is zoned General Commercial (GC). Under the zoning code Section 106.65, a CBD/ Tobacco/ Vape shop is 
considered specialty retail and therefore requires a specific use permit in the General Commercial district. 
Chapter 106, Article 11 defines this use as an “establishment where the primary use of the building or lease 
space includes any one or any combination of the following: the sale of cigarette papers, e-cigarettes, vapors, 
bongs, or other smoking accessories. This definition shall include head shops and vapor shops.”  
 
The applicant’s narrative states that there was a CBD store at this location previously. To clarify, the previous 
use at this location was classified as a Health Food and Vitamin Store. That establishment was allowed to 
sell CBD-containing health products such as vitamins, nutrition supplements, and body-enhancing 
supplements, and this did not include the sale of tobacco products, vape, cigarettes, or smoking 
paraphernalia.  



Page 2 of 4 

 
SURROUNDING PROPERTIES AND NEIGHBORHOOD 
 
This business is proposed in an existing shopping center on N Crowley Rd. The properties to the north and 
south of the site are zoned General Commercial. The property backs up to a small self-storage facility, 
behind which is the Chalet City neighborhood (Manufactured Home zoning district), and N Crowley Rd 
runs along the western edge of the property. The property across N Crowley Rd is zoned Industrial and is 
currently vacant.  
 
STAFF REVIEW 
 
Staff have based their review on the criteria listed in Section 106.34(C) of the zoning code. 
 

Conformity with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
 
The property is shown as Traditional Suburban Commercial in the future land use plan. The applicant does 
not intend to make any changes to the exterior façade of the existing building or to the site, and the requested 
use falls under retail, which does not conflict with the comprehensive plan.  
 

Compliance with the Zoning Code Requirements 
 
The applicant does not intend to change or modify the exterior of the building or the site and, therefore, is 
not required to comply with the design standards, zoning setback requirements, or landscaping and screening 
requirements of the zoning code if the SUP is granted. The existing parking spaces comply with the 
requirements for number of parking spaces in Ch. 106.  
 

Conformance with Other Requirements 
 
Contribution to the general welfare/benefit to the city    
Based on a study published by the Health Equity Journal, vape shops are a part of the built environment 
that may cause health problems in youth by exposing them to tobacco product labeling and advertising.1 
The tobacco/ vape outlets increase the visibility of tobacco marketing, make tobacco products more 
accessible, and foster normative cultures that support tobacco use.2  
 
As for CBD retail, THC, the compound that gives marijuana users their high, is very rare in CBD. THC 
content in CBD products is limited to 0.3%, but that in medicinal marijuana oil can reach up to 5%.3 CBD 
has been promoted as a treatment for a wide variety of medical conditions, and these days more and more 
health and nutrition stores include CBD in their products for sale. 
 
Lastly, Planning staff checked with the Police Department and were informed that CBD is classified as a 
phytocannabinoid and does not fall under the list of prohibited smoking materials in Ch. 54 of the city code.   
 

 
1 Venugopal PD, Morse AL, Alrefai-Kirkpatrick R, Tworek C, Chang HW. The Co-occurrence of Specialty Vape Shops, Social 
Disadvantage, and Poor Air Quality in the United States: An Assessment of Cumulative Risks to Youth. Health Equity. 2022 Feb 
25;6(1):132-141. doi: 10.1089/heq.2021.0151. PMID: 35261940; PMCID: PMC8896168. 
 
2 Wheeler DC, Do EK, Hayes RB, Fugate-Laus K, Fallavollita WL, Hughes C, Fuemmeler BF. Neighborhood Disadvantage and 
Tobacco Retail Outlet and Vape Shop Outlet Rates. Int J Environ Res Public Health. 2020 Apr 21;17(8):2864. doi: 
10.3390/ijerph17082864. PMID: 32326297; PMCID: PMC7215286. 
 
3 Oliviero H, Niesse M. CBD is everywhere but is it safe? The Atlanta Journal-Constitution. 2019 May. Url: 
https://www.ajc.com/news/state--regional-govt--politics/cbd-everywhere-but-safe/ 



Page 3 of 4 

Scale with the existing neighborhood 
The request does not conflict with the scale of the existing neighborhood or ongoing development. 
 
Site and operational requirements  
The business will be operating 10AM to 12AM from Monday through Saturday and 12PM to 10PM on 
Sunday. They expect to have 75 to 100 customers per day and will have a total of four to six employees. 
According to the SUP application, the store will sell “CBD, disposable vapes, wellness products (CBD 
lotions, bath bombs, bath salts, hand creams for pain relief) and accessories (ashtrays/cups, lighters, 
candles)”. The Council should note that if the SUP is approved as requested, under the zoning code the 
applicant also has the right to sell e-cigarettes/vape, tobacco, cigars, cigarettes, etc. unless conditionally 
prohibited under the SUP.  
 
The requested business is not expected to create a substantial traffic impact on the adjoining properties and 
street network. The applicant is not required to add any additional drive approaches or parking spaces; they 
are not planning to add any additional lighting and are not expected to have offsite impacts such as noise or 
light spillover. 
 
Staff have seen some businesses of this nature that cover windows either with signs (including hand-painted 
signs) or screens. For attached permanent signs, city codes prohibit signs from covering more than 15% of 
the wall area, but temporary wall signs are not specifically noted in the sign regulations.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

At the Planning & Zoning Commission, staff recommended the following conditions be applied if the 
Commission voted to approve. The first condition listed is not strictly necessary; it was recommended 
simply to ensure the applicant and future city staff members understand that granting the SUP does not 
waive the requirements of Ch. 18. 
 
• The use will still have to comply with the requirements of the city code Ch. 18, Article III, Section 18-

46. This includes a prohibition on tobacco sales to minors, self-service tobacco sales, and tobacco 
vending machines and also includes posting a warning sign in accordance with the Health and Safety 
Code 161.081.  

• Total signage for the business, including both temporary and permanent window signs, cannot take up 
more than 15% of the total wall area for the lease space. No more than 50% of windows and doors may 
be covered with materials intended to block or screen visibility into the store. Sunscreens may be used 
as long as they do not prohibit visibility. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning & Zoning Commission considered this case during its regular meeting on September 11. No 
one spoke either for or against the request during the public hearing. The Commission then discussed the 
case and voted to recommend approval without adding any conditions.  Because the Commission did not 
include any conditions on approval in its recommendation, no conditions were added to the ordinance 
included in the agenda packet. 
 
ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL: 
 
Sample motions 
The motions provided below are for the City Council members’ reference. You are not required to use this 
language in your motion. 
 



Page 4 of 4 

Approve:  I make a motion to approve Ordinance No 09-2023-507 
 
Approve with conditions: I make a motion to approve Ordinance No 09-2023-507 with the following 
conditions:  [list conditions].  
 
Postpone: I make a motion to continue Case # SUP-2023-003 until [state date]. 
 
Deny: I make a motion to deny Ordinance No 09-2023-507 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Application for Case SUP-2023-003 
Maps showing location, future land use plan, and zoning 
Ordinance approving Case # SUP-2023-003 

 



















August 18th, 2023 

Mrs. Mangle,  

 

Thank you for taking our business into consideration. I have provided you with information you need to 

complete the application for a Specific Use Permit for the CBD/Tobacco Shop. If you have any questions, 

please reach out.  

 

1. Business name 

a. Zaza Smoke and Vape 

2. Hours of operation 

a. Monday – Saturday: 10 am – 12 am  

b. Sunday: 12pm – 10pm 

3. Number of customers anticipated per day. 

a. We are anticipating about 75 – 100 customers per day. 

4. Types of products sold. 

a. The products sold at this location will be, CBD, disposable vapes, wellness products (CBD 

lotions, bath bombs, bath salts, hand creams for pain relief) and accessories (ash 

trays/cups, lighters, candles) 

5. Number of employees 

a. We will have around 4-6 employees.  

6. Studies or analyses showing demand for the proposed use. 

a. The demand of E-Cigarettes and Vapes accounted for 22.45 billion Dollars in the year of 

2022 and is estimated to be 391.1 billion Dollars by the year of 2032.  

b. According to the 2023 Electronic Cigarette Report for Texas that came out in January 

2023, 36.2% of adults had used tried and e-cigarette products, compared to the 21.7% 

in 2020. This is about a 15% increase in the past 3 years.  

c. Statistics show in Texas that:  

i. 40.5% white adults reported using or trying E-Cigarettes products. 

ii. 36% of black adults reported using or trying E-Cigarettes products. 

iii. 31.2% of Hispanic adults reported using or trying E-Cigarettes products. 

iv. 36.1% of other/multiracial adults reporting using or trying E-Cigarettes products.  

v. 57.3% of adults aged 21-29 reported using E-Cigarettes.  



 

 

 

Sincerely,  

Ismail Alshudifat 

Ismail Alshudifat 

Founder of Zaza 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

2022 2032

Sales by US Billion Dollars

Sales by US Billion

Demographic

White Adults Black Adults Hispanic Adults Other/Multiracial Adults ages of 21-29



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 09-2023-507 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS, BY GRANTING A SPECIFIC USE 
PERMIT TO ALLOW A CBD/ TOBACCO/ VAPE SHOP AT 824 N 
CROWLEY RD, JOHN H. LUCAS SURVEY, ABSTRACT 932 TRACT 
1D07A, REVISING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP IN ACCORDANCE 
THEREWITH; PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE 
CUMULATIVE OF ALL ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR VIOLATIONS HEREOF; 
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION IN 
THE OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  

          
 WHEREAS, the City of Crowley is a home rule city acting under its charter adopted by the 
electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5, of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 9 of the Local 
Government Code; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Crowley regulates and restricts the location 
and use of buildings, structures and land for trade, industry, residence and other purposes, and provides 
for the establishment of zoning districts of such number, shape and area as may be best suited to carry 
out these regulations; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Crowley requires the issuance of a Specific 
Use Permit to operate a specialty retail store (e-cigarettes/ vape, tobacco, cigars, cigarettes, etc., and 
paraphernalia, sales) in the General Commercial Zoning District in the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, an application authorized by the owner of the property located at 824 N Crowley 
Rd, whose legal description is John H. Lucas Survey, Abstract 932 Tract 1D07A, in the City of 
Crowley, Tarrant County, Texas, has been filed for a specific use permit to operate a CBD/ Tobacco/ 
Vape shop; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Crowley, Texas held a public 
hearing on September 11, 2023, and the City Council of the City of Crowley, Texas, held a public 
hearing on September 21, 2023, with respect to the Specific Use Permit described herein; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has complied with all requirements of Chapter 211 of the Local 

Government Code, the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Crowley, and all other laws dealing with notice, 
publication and procedural requirements for the approval of a specific use permit on the property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the approval of the specific use permit will allow a 
use that is harmonious and adaptable to building structures and uses of abutting property and other 
property in the vicinity of the premises under consideration, subject to the conditions imposed herein, 
if any;     
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CROWLEY, TEXAS, THAT:  

SECTION 1. 
 

 The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Crowley, as amended, is hereby amended by granting a 
Specific Use Permit to 7th Heaven LLC for operation of a CBD/ Tobacco/ Vape shop on the property 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

located at 824 N Crowley Rd, John H. Lucas Survey, Abstract 932 Tract 1D07A, located in the General 
Commercial District. 
 

SECTION 2. 
 

 The Specific Use Permit as herein established has been made in accordance with a 
comprehensive plan for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, morals and general welfare of the 
community.  

 
SECTION 3. 

 
 The official zoning map of the City of Crowley is amended and the City Secretary is directed 
to revise the official zoning map to reflect the approved Specific Use Permit as set forth above. 
 

SECTION 4. 
 

 This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of ordinances and of the Zoning Ordinance 
of the City of Crowley, Texas, as amended, except when the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct 
conflict with the provisions of such ordinances, in which event the conflicting provisions of such 
ordinances are hereby repealed.  
 

SECTION 5. 
 

 It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, paragraphs, 
sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance are severable, and if any section, paragraph, sentence, 
clause, or phrase of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree 
of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance, since the same would have 
been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of any such 
unconstitutional section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase.  
 

SECTION 6. 
 

 Any person, firm or corporation, who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects or refuses to comply 
with or who resists the enforcement of any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall be fined not more 
than Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00).  Each day that a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute 
a separate offense. 
 

SECTION 7. 
 

 All rights and remedies of the City of Crowley are expressly saved as to any and all violations 
of the provisions of any ordinances governing zoning that have accrued at the time of the effective date 
of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, 
whether pending in court or not, under such ordinances, same shall not be affected by this Ordinance 
but may be prosecuted until final disposition by the courts. 
 

SECTION 8. 
 

 The City Secretary is hereby directed to publish the caption, penalty clause, and effective date 
of this Ordinance in one issue of the official newspaper of the City, as required by Section 52.013 of 
the Local Government Code. 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
SECTION 9. 

 
 This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage and 
publication as required by law, and it is so ordained.  
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 21ST DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 
 
      CITY OF CROWLEY 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
 Billy P. Davis, Mayor  

 
ATTEST:  
 
 
_______________________________  
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rob Allibon, City Attorney 
 
 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Lori Watson MEETING DATE: September 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Deputy CM AGENDA ITEM: VII-1 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 09-2023-504, an ordinance of the 
City of Crowley, Texas approving and adopting the budget for fiscal year 2023-
24, beginning October 1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024, providing a 
severability clause; and declaring an effective date.   

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

Council held a special budget work session on August 8, 2023 at 6:00 pm and staff presented the 
proposed FY 2023-24 Operating budget.  The budget includes revenues that the $0.594890/$100 tax 
rate would generate.  The General Fund revenue is proposed at $ 17,488,032 and expenditures at 
$17,483,700, leaving a balance of $4,332.  The Debt Service fund proposed revenue of $2,271,498 and 
expenditures of $2,465,780, resulting in a shortage of $194,282 to be paid from prior year excess 
collections.  The Water & Sewer Fund proposed revenue is $7,973,450 and expenses of $7,969,863, 
resulting in a surplus of $3,587.  The Stormwater Fund revenues are $588,000, and expenditures of 
$383,525, resulting in a surplus of $204,475.   

RECOMMENDATION:  

Section 102.007 of the Texas Local Government Code requires the governing body to take a record vote 
when adopting the budget.   

FISCAL INFORMATION:  

Establish Operating Budget for FY 2023-24 

ATTACHMENTS:  

● Ordinance 09-2023-504 
● Exhibit A-City of Crowley Operating Budget FY2023-24 
 

 



 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  09-2023- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CROWLEY, 
TEXAS, APPROVING AND ADOPTING AN OPERATING BUDGET FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2023 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 
2024; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND DECLARING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Crowley is a home rule city acting under its charter adopted by the 
electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 9 of the local Government 
Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Crowley has submitted to the City Council a proposed 

budget of the revenues of said city and the expenses of conducting the affairs thereof, and providing a 
complete financial plan for the ensuing fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023 and ending September 30, 
2024, and which said proposed budget has been compiled from detailed information obtained from the 
several departments, divisions and offices of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has received and reviewed said City Manager’s proposed budget, a 

copy of which proposed budget and all supporting schedules have been filed with the City Secretary of the 
City of Crowley, and is of the opinion that the same should be approved and adopted, and that a public 
hearing before the City Council has been provided for as required by the statutes of the State of Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the budget was duly set for a public hearing ordered to be called by the City Council 

and held on September 21, 2023, after due notice, as required by the laws of the State of Texas and at which 
time said budget was fully considered and interested taxpayers were heard by said City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has studied the budget and listened to the comments of the taxpayers 
at the public hearing and has determined that the budget attached hereto is in the best interest of the City 
and that same should be approved and adopted. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CROWLEY, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1 
 

 All of the above premises are found to be true and correct and are incorporated into the body of this 
Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 

SECTION 2 
 

For the purpose of providing the funds necessary and proposed to be expended in the budget for 
the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023, and ending September 30, 2024, the available resources and 
revenues of the City of Crowley for said fiscal year be, and the same are hereby appropriated and set aside 
for the maintenance and operation of the various departments of the City, together with the various activities 
set forth in the budget as finally adopted and as hereinafter set forth, and said the amounts in accordance 
with the document entitled, “City of Crowley 2023-2024 Operating Budget,” identified as Exhibit “A” 
attached. 

SECTION 3 
 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

That except in cases of emergency, no money shall be drawn from the treasury of the City, nor shall 
any obligation for the expenditure of money be incurred except pursuant to the budget appropriations as set 
out in the approved budget.  The City Manager may transfer appropriation funds from one line item to 
another line item within the same fund.  Appropriations may be transferred from one fund to another upon 
recommendation of the City Manager and approval of a budget amendment by the City Council. 
 

SECTION 4 
 

The budget adopted herein shall be a public record filed in the office of the City Secretary and 
available for public inspection by any interested party.  The City Secretary shall file or cause to be filed a 
true and correct copy of this Ordinance, along with the approved budget attached hereto, and any 
amendments thereto, in the office of the County Clerk of Tarrant and Johnson Counties, Texas as required 
by State Law. 
 

SECTION 5 
 

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, paragraphs, sentences, 
clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable; and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section 
of this ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City 
Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph or section. 
 

SECTION 6 
 

This ordinance shall be effective on October 1, 2023 as approved by the City Council of the City 
of Crowley, Texas. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Crowley, 
Texas, on this the 21st day of September 2023. 
 
       CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       Billy P. Davis, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Rob Allibon, City Attorney 



Exhibit A

2023-24 2022-23
Property Tax Rate: $0.594890/100 $0.645203/100
No-New-Revenue Tax Rate: $0.556294/100 $0.646780/100

$0.429509/100 $0.463545/100
Voter-Approval Tax Rate: $0.579697/100 $0.625236/100
Debt Rate: $0.135156/100 $0.145467/100
DeMinimus Rate $0.594890/100 $0.645204/100

Total debt obligation for City of Crowley secured by property taxes $2,465,780

Property Tax Rate Comparison

No-New-Revenue Maintenance & 
Operations Tax Rate:

City of Crowley
Fiscal Year 2023-24

Operating Budget

This budget will raise more total property taxes than last year's budget by $896,128 or 9.2%, 
and of that amount, $231,398 is tax revenue to be raised from new property added to the tax 

roll this year.



2021-22 
Amended 
Budget

2022-23 
Budget

2023-24 
Proposed 
Budget

Maintenance & Operation Revenue 6,465,493$    7,487,510$    8,216,860$     
Maintenance & Operation Rate 0.526102       0.526103       0.459734        

Debt Service Revenue 2,500,181$    2,179,522$    2,415,653$     
Debt Service Rate 0.203442       0.203442       0.135156        

Mailing Address for City of Crowley: 201 E. Main Street, Crowley TX 76036
www.ci.crowley.tx.us
817-297-2201

City Council Members:

Billy P. Davis Mayor billy@ci.crowley.tx.us
Johnny Shotwell Council Place 1 jshotwell@ci.crowley.tx.us
Jerry Beck, Jr. Council Place 2 jbeck@ci.crowley.tx.us
Jesse D. Johnson Council Place 3 jjohnson@ci.crowley.tx.us
Jim Hirth Council Place 4 jhirth@ci.crowley.tx.us
Open Council Place 5
Scott Gilbreath Council Place 6 sgilbreath@ci.crowley.tx.us

City of Crowley

http://www.ci.crowley.tx.us/
mailto:billy@ci.crowley.tx.us
mailto:jshotwell@ci.crowley.tx.us
mailto:jbeck@ci.crowley.tx.us
mailto:jjohnson@ci.crowley.tx.us
mailto:cweber@ci.crowley.tx.us
mailto:cgilbreath@ci.crowley.tx.us


2021-22 
Actual 

Revenues

2022-23 
Current 
Budget

2022-23 
Projected 
Year End

 2023-24 
Budget 
Request 

General Fund Revenue 16,167,264           15,586,568       17,283,715     17,488,032       
General Fund Expenditures 14,916,135           15,585,941       16,396,929     17,483,700       
Other Sources/Uses (258,696)               -                    -                  -                    

Revenues over(under) 992,433$            627$               886,786$       4,332$            
Expenditures

Debt Service Fund Revenue 5,652,850             2,197,322         2,475,500       2,271,498         
Debt Service Fund Expenditures 2,544,849             2,391,847         2,391,847       2,465,780         

Revenues over(under) 3,108,001$         (194,525)$        83,653$         (194,282)$        
Expenditures

Water & Sewer Fund Revenue 8,458,840             7,236,635         8,099,906       # 7,973,450         
Water & Sewer Fund Expenditures 6,182,373             7,232,819         7,406,765       # 7,969,863         
Other Sources/Uses -                    -                  -                    

Revenues over(under) 2,276,467$         3,816$            693,141$       3,587$            
Expenditures

Storm Water Fund Revenue 586,035                538,600            586,000          588,000            
Stormwater Fund Expenditures 102,624                538,600            291,245          383,525            
Other Sources/Uses -                    -                  -                    

Revenues over(under) 483,411$            -$                294,755$       204,475$         
Expenditures

City of Crowley
Summary of Revenues over (under) Expenditures

2023-24 Budget



2021-22 
Actual 

Revenues

2022-23 
Current 
Budget

2022-23 
Projected 
Year End

 2023-24 
Budget 
Request 

 Difference in 
2021-22 & 

2022-23 Budget 
% 

Change
Revenues
Tax Receipts 10,372,000$        11,191,887$     11,137,208$   12,274,290$     
Permit Fees 557,310               764,375            710,593          721,716            
Intergovernmental 1,586,484            967,841            1,008,666       1,056,841         
Fees and Fines 1,157,746            562,850            1,256,237       705,730            
Charges for Services 2,115,015            2,043,915         2,129,098       2,205,455         
Other Income 378,709               55,700              1,041,913       524,000            
Bond and Lease Proceeds -                       -                   -                   

16,167,264$       15,586,568$    17,283,715$  17,488,032$    1,901,464$      12%

General Fund 
Revenues

2023-24 Budget

Grand Total



2021-22 
Actual

2022-23 
Current 
Budget

2022-23 
Projected 
Year End

 2023-24 
Budget 
Request 

 Difference in 
2021-22 & 

2022-23 Budget 
% 

Change
Non-Departmental
Personnel Services 112,871$               139,673$                168,436$          171,300$                
Materials & Supplies 25,543                   93,959                    93,686              103,959                  
Services 1,542,969              1,549,216               1,631,746         1,680,063               
Maintenance & Repair 96,052                   102,121                  89,121              102,121                  
Capital Outlay 29,067                   -                         40,481              -                         
Miscellaneous 672,790                 15,364                    15,489              15,908                    

Total 2,479,292$          1,900,333$           2,038,959$      2,073,351$           173,018$         9%

Administration
Personnel Services 622,090$               649,875$                651,954$          968,177$                
Materials & Supplies 12,886                   15,450                    16,400              23,034                    
Services 30,127                   29,242                    28,967              32,746                    
Maintenance & Repair 3,502                     4,800                      3,130                4,800                      
Capital Outlay -                        -                         9,575                -                         
Miscellaneous 18,493                   28,787                    46,676              31,174                    

Total 687,098$             728,154$              756,702$         1,059,931$           331,777$         46%

Municipal Court
Personnel Services 151,134                 161,434$                160,768$          # 152,634$                
Materials & Supplies 1,886                     3,150                      2,000                3,800                      
Services 105,219                 107,433                  103,514            108,364                  
Maintenance & Repair -                        -                         -                   -                         
Capital Outlay -                        -                         -                   -                         
Miscellaneous 1,632                     4,900                      2,259                2,790                      

Total 259,871$             276,917$              268,541$         267,588$              (9,329)$           -3%

Library
Personnel Services 447,233                 535,638$                543,623$          526,597$                
Materials & Supplies 17,159                   20,400                    21,200              21,850                    
Services 47,377                   52,294                    54,772              53,309                    
Maintenance & Repair 13,499                   9,500                      9,500                9,500                      
Capital Outlay 8,896                     -                         20,990              -                         
Miscellaneous 65,053                   58,169                    63,005              64,094                    

Total 599,217$             676,001$              713,090$         675,350$              (651)$              0%

Senior Center
Personnel Services 23,174                   26,055$                  31,335$            60,720$                  
Materials & Supplies 1,381                     2,300                      2,100                6,150                      
Services 1,000                     12,000                    1,000                14,529                    
Maintenance & Repair -                        -                         -                   -                         
Capital Outlay -                        -                         -                   -                         
Miscellaneous -                        -                         -                   -                         

Total 25,555$               40,355$                34,435$          81,399$                41,044$          102%

Police Department
Personnel Services 3,535,077              4,011,160$             4,117,819$       4,521,393$             
Materials & Supplies 100,789                 50,350                    64,274              64,670                    
Services 105,190                 112,753                  125,748            132,382                  
Maintenance & Repair 33,542                   39,000                    38,683              39,000                    
Capital Outlay 30,949                   -                         12,892              -                         
Miscellaneous 27,322                   26,718                    26,800              31,800                    

Total 3,832,869$          4,239,981$           4,386,216$      4,789,245$           549,264$         13%

General Fund 
Department Expenditures

2023-24 Budget



2021-22 
Actual

2022-23 
Current 
Budget

2022-23 
Projected 
Year End

 2023-24 
Budget 
Request 

 Difference in 
2021-22 & 

2022-23 Budget 
% 

Change

General Fund 
Department Expenditures

2023-24 Budget

Fire Department
Personnel Services 3,513,133              4,122,998$             3,909,998$       4,620,643$             
Materials & Supplies 129,969                 86,715                    88,290              95,040                    
Services 160,688                 180,077                  190,783            233,322                  
Maintenance & Repair 148,972                 78,540                    201,234            118,540                  
Capital Outlay 20,946                   -                         170,318            -                         
Miscellaneous 28,843                   31,257                    31,550              34,550                    

Total 4,002,551$          4,499,587$           4,592,173$      5,102,095$           602,508$         13%

Public Works
Personnel Services 404,851                 476,062$                444,447$          601,090$                
Materials & Supplies 35,403                   8,184                      18,734              11,198                    
Services 52,677                   28,722                    42,114              46,068                    
Maintenance & Repair 136,144                 59,613                    177,050            200,261                  
Capital Outlay 113,134                 -                         97,961              -                         
Miscellaneous 80                         342                        243                   560                         

Total 742,289$             572,923$              780,549$         859,177$              286,254$         50%

Parks
Personnel Services 221,834                 329,960$                276,557$          395,423$                
Materials & Supplies 15,264                   5,854                      6,575                6,788                      
Services 50,682                   56,671                    61,585              60,480                    
Maintenance & Repair 43,762                   21,700                    24,000              22,500                    
Capital Outlay 120,749                 131,945                  225,649            
Miscellaneous -                        950                        -                   950                         

Total 452,291$             547,080$              594,366$         486,141$              (60,939)$          -11%

Animal Control
Personnel Services 274,104                 320,657$                314,732$          319,481$                
Materials & Supplies 22,336                   23,270                    23,250              22,600                    
Services 14,560                   17,688                    14,802              17,496                    
Maintenance & Repair 1,195                     3,050                      3,200                3,900                      
Capital Outlay -                        -                         -                   -                         
Miscellaneous 953                        2,390                      2,390                2,395                      

Total 313,148$             367,055$              358,374$         365,872$              (1,183)$           0%

Community Development
Personnel Services 249,146                 282,196$                284,384$          412,658$                
Materials & Supplies 3,342                     5,575                      5,624                2,995                      
Services 169,014                 171,519                  280,314            55,318                    
Maintenance & Repair 3,383                     430                        500                   600                         
Capital Outlay -                        130                        4,000                -                         
Miscellaneous 4,100                     7,110                      3,600                12,300                    

Total 428,985$             466,960$              578,422$         483,871$              16,911$          4%

Code Enforcement
Personnel Services 82,566                   95,200$                  91,145$            90,257$                  
Materials & Supplies 1,369                     400                        400                   400                         
Services 795                        690                        792                   690                         
Maintenance & Repair 1,703                     200                        500                   200                         
Capital Outlay -                        -                         -                   -                         
Miscellaneous -                        1,140                      1,140                1,140                      

Total 86,433$               97,630$                93,977$          92,687$                (4,943)$           -5%



2021-22 
Actual

2022-23 
Current 
Budget

2022-23 
Projected 
Year End

 2023-24 
Budget 
Request 

 Difference in 
2021-22 & 

2022-23 Budget 
% 

Change

General Fund 
Department Expenditures

2023-24 Budget

Finance
Personnel Services 372,003                 405,389$                407,057$          310,695$                
Materials & Supplies 2,826                     650                        800                   1,650                      
Services 10,373                   10,964                    10,823              10,511                    
Maintenance & Repair 2,466                     800                        855                   1,000                      
Capital Outlay -                        -                         -                   -                         
Miscellaneous 5,534                     6,339                      6,303                6,405                      

Total 393,202$             424,142$              425,838$         330,261$              (93,881)$          -22%

Recreation Center
Personnel Services 389,405                 511,015$                490,587$          545,128$                
Materials & Supplies 21,663                   21,250                    21,600              26,150                    
Services 66,316                   81,010                    85,208              86,444                    
Maintenance & Repair 12,110                   17,000                    17,529              17,000                    
Capital Outlay 17,607                   -                         46,663              -                         
Miscellaneous 87,112                   105,080                  98,651              127,658                  

Total 594,213$             735,355$              760,238$         802,380$              67,025$          9%

Crouch Event Center
Personnel Services -                        -$                       -$                 -$                       
Materials & Supplies 7,882                     1,100                      1,200                1,100                      
Services 7,654                     9,743                      9,303                10,253                    
Maintenance & Repair 3,585                     2,625                      4,546                3,000                      
Capital Outlay -                        -                         -                   -                         
Miscellaneous -                        -                         -                   -                         

Total 19,121$               13,468$                15,049$          14,353$                885$               7%

14,916,135$        15,585,941$         16,396,929$    17,483,700$         1,897,759$      12%Grand Total



2021-22 
Actual

2022-23 
Current 
Budget

2022-23 
Projected 
Year End

 2023-24 
Budget 
Request 

 Difference in 
2021-22 & 

2022-23 Budget 
% 

Change
Revenues
Tax Receipts 2,722,827$          2,197,322$       2,475,500$     2,271,498$       
Bond and Lease Proceeds 2,930,023            -                   -                 -                   

5,652,850$         2,197,322$      2,475,500$    2,271,498$      74,176$          3%

Expenditures
Debt Service             2,544,849          2,391,847        2,391,847          2,465,780 
Transfer Out

2,544,849$         2,391,847$      2,391,847$    2,465,780$      73,933$          3%

Debt Service Fund
Revenue & Expenditures

2023-24 Budget

Grand Total

Grand Total



2021-22 
Actual 

Revenues

2022-23 
Current 
Budget

2022-23 
Projected 
Year End

 2023-24 
Budget 
Request 

 Difference in 
2021-22 & 

2022-23 Budget 
% 

Change
Revenues
Charges for Services 8,388,277$          7,221,635$       8,052,156$     7,932,150$       
Other Income 70,563                 15,000              47,750            41,300              

8,458,840$         7,236,635$      8,099,906$    7,973,450$      736,815$        10%

Water & Sewer Fund
Revenues

2023-24 Budget

Grand Total



2021-22 
Actual 

2022-23 
Current 
Budget

2022-23 
Projected 
Year End

 2023-24 
Budget 
Request 

 Difference in 
2021-22 & 

2022-23 Budget 
% 

Change

Debt Service
Debt Service                  325,931          1,307,563          1,307,563                1,036,544 

Total 325,931$             1,307,563$      1,307,563$      1,036,544$           (271,019)$        -21%

Non-Departmental
Personnel Services 25,560$                 27,000$            39,284$            42,000$                  
Materials & Supplies -                        66,550              66,550              66,550                    
Services 221,304                 232,236            259,968            246,367                  
Maintenance & Repair -                        -                    -                    -                          
Capital Outlay 625                        -                    -                    21,240                    
Miscellaneous 583,747                 583,286            583,416            583,416                  

Total 831,236$             909,072$         949,218$         959,573$              50,501$          6%

Customer Service
Personnel Services 228,331$               274,639$          229,030$          228,040$                
Materials & Supplies 3,333                     1,771                1,300                3,055                      
Services 89,371                   101,807            100,738            106,729                  
Maintenance & Repair 180                        500                   500                   500                         
Capital Outlay 677                        643                   -                    643                         
Miscellaneous 3,076                     2,400                -                    1,000                      

Total 324,968$             381,760$         331,568$         339,967$              (41,793)$          -11%

Water Department
Personnel Services 492,620                 767,458$          704,331$          927,471$                
Materials & Supplies 25,359                   13,500              11,500              16,396                    
Services 2,186,935              1,975,095         2,221,672         2,203,742               
Maintenance & Repair 45,201                   46,750              47,958              47,750                    
Capital Outlay 1,014,491              200,322            225,000            532,589                  
Miscellaneous 1,654                     2,135                2,000                14,112                    

Total 3,766,260$          3,005,260$      3,212,461$      3,742,060$           736,800$         25%

Sewer Department
Personnel Services 93,313                   115,352$          121,958$          129,244$                
Materials & Supplies 2,925                     3,400                3,000                3,600                      
Services 833,946                 1,503,031         1,469,947         1,503,172               
Maintenance & Repair 3,563                     6,550                11,050              7,050                      
Capital Outlay -                        -                    -                    246,992                  
Miscellaneous 231                        831                   -                    1,661                      

Total 933,978$             1,629,164$      1,605,955$      1,891,719$           262,555$         16%

6,182,373$          7,232,819$      7,406,765$      7,969,863$           737,044$         10%

Water & Sewer Fund
Department Expenditures

2023-24 Budget

Grand Total



2021-22 
Actual 

2022-23 
Current 
Budget

2022-23 
Projected 
Year End

 2023-24 
Budget 
Request 

 Difference in 
2021-22 & 

2022-23 Budget 
% 

Change
Revenues
Charges for Services 586,035$             538,600$          586,000$        588,000$          

-                       -                   -                 -                   
586,035$            538,600$        586,000$       588,000$        49,400$          9%

Expenditures
Non Departmental
Personnel Services 37,620$               17,071$            18,495$          43,921$            
Materials & Supplies -                       -                   -                 -                   
Services -                       -                   -                 -                   
Maintenance & Repair 2,098                   3,750                20,000            3,750                
Capital Outlay 60,656                 515,029            250,000          333,104            
Miscellaneous 2,250                   2,750                2,750              2,750                

102,624$            538,600$        291,245$       383,525$        (155,075)$        -29%

Storm Water Fund
Revenue & Expenditures

2023-24 Budget

Grand Total

Grand Total



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Lori Watson MEETING DATE: September 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Deputy CM AGENDA ITEM: VII-2 

SUBJECT: Consider and act upon the ratification of the property tax revenue increase 
reflected in the Proposed FY 2023-24 City of Crowley Operating Budget.   

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

Section 102.007(c) of the Local Government Code requires a separate vote of the governing body to 
ratify the property tax if the adopted budget will raise more revenue from property taxes compared to 
the previous year.  The fiscal year 2023-24 Operating Budget will result in a revenue increase of 
$896,128, or 9.2% from the previous year. 
 
The City’s tax rate is proposed to decrease by $0.050313, (from $0.645203 to $0.594890 per $100 of 
taxable property value.  The property tax revenue increase will be used to address inflation, add 
personnel, and other items as presented at the August 8, 2023 budget work session.   

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends City Council ratify the property tax revenue increase reflected in the FY 2023-24 
City of Crowley Operating Budget.   

FISCAL INFORMATION:  

This tax rate raises more taxes for maintenance and operations than last year’s rate.  The maintenance 
and operation rate is $0.459734/$100 and the interest and sinking rate is $0.135156/$100.  The total tax 
rate is $0.594890/$100.   

  

 
 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Lori Watson MEETING DATE: September 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Deputy CM AGENDA ITEM: VII-3 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 09-2023-505, an ordinance of the City of 
Crowley, Texas affixing and levying Municipal Ad Valorem Taxes for the fiscal year 
2023-24, beginning October 1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024, and for each 
year thereafter until otherwise provided on all taxable property within the corporate 
limits of the City of Crowley as of January 1, 2024 to provide revenues for the payment 
of current expenses and all outstanding debts of the city; directing the assessment 
thereof; providing for due dates and delinquent dates for payment of taxes together 
with penalties and interest thereon; providing for approval of the tax rolls presented to 
the City Council; repealing conflicting ordinances providing a severability clause and 
declaring an effective date.   

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

In accordance with Chapter 26 of the Texas Tax Code, the governing body must hold one (1) public hearing on 
the proposed tax rate that exceeds the no-new revenue tax rate.  A public hearing on the tax rate was held on 
September 21, 2023. 
At the August 3rd meeting, Council established a proposed maximum tax rate of $0.594890/$100 of taxable value.  
This is greater than the no-new-revenue rate of $0.556294/$100 and greater than the voter-approval tax rate of 
$0.579697/$100. 
The tax rate of $0.594890/$100 consists of the proposed maintenance and operations (M&O) rate of 
$0.459734/$100 and the interest and sinking (I&S) rate of $0.135156/$100.  

RECOMMENDATION:  

Please use the following language to adopt the ordinance: 
I move that the property tax rate be increased by the adoption of the tax rate of $0.594890, which is effectively 
a 9.2 percent increase in the tax rate, and move adoption of the ordinance as presented.     

FISCAL INFORMATION:  

The average taxable value of a residence in the City of Crowley for 2022 was $212,160.  Based on last year’s 
tax rate of $0.645203/$100, the amount of taxes imposed last year was $1,368. 
The average taxable value of a residence in the City of Crowley for 2023 is $245,680. If the governing body 
adopts the proposed tax rate of $0.594890/$100, the amount of taxes imposed would be $1,461. 
If the governing body adopts the proposed no-new-tax rate of $.556294/$100, the amount of taxes imposed this 
year on the average home would be $1,367. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

● Ordinance 09-2023-505 
 



 
Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 09-2023-505 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS, AFFIXING AND 
LEVYING MUNICIPAL AD VALOREM TAXES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2023 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2024, AND FOR 
EACH YEAR THEREAFTER UNTIL OTHERWISE PROVIDED ON ALL 
TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
CROWLEY, AS OF JANUARY 1, 2024, TO PROVIDE REVENUES FOR THE 
PAYMENT OF CURRENT EXPENSES AND ALL OUTSTANDING DEBTS OF 
THE CITY; DIRECTING THE ASSESSMENT THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR 
DUE DATES AND DELINQUENT DATES FOR PAYMENT OF TAXES 
TOGETHER WITH PENALTIES AND INTEREST THEREON; PROVIDING 
FOR PLACE OF PAYMENT; PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL OF THE TAX 
ROLLS PRESENTED TO THE CITY COUNCIL; REPEALING CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND 
DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Crowley is a home rule city acting under its charter adopted by the 
electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 9 of the local Government 
Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Crowley, Texas (hereinafter referred to as the "City") 

hereby finds that the tax for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023, and ending September 30, 2024, 
hereinafter levied for current expenses of the City and the general improvements of the City and its property, 
must be levied to provide the revenue requirement for the budget for the ensuing year; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has approved by a separate ordinance adopted on the 21st day of 
September, 2023 the budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023, and ending September 30, 2024; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council provided notice of the effective tax rate as required by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, all statutory and constitutional requirements concerning the levying and assessing of 
ad valorem taxes have been complied with. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CROWLEY, TEXAS THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. 
 
 All of the above premises are found to be true and correct and are incorporated into the body of this 
ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

 
SECTION 2. 

 
 The real and personal property tax appraisal rolls as certified by the Chief Appraiser of the Tarrant 
Appraisal District and the Johnson County Appraisal District to the City Council for the 2023 tax year are 
hereby accepted. 
 

SECTION 3. 
 
 There is hereby levied and ordered to be assessed and collected for the fiscal year beginning 
October 1, 2023, and ending September 30, 2024, and for each fiscal year thereafter until it be otherwise 



 
Page 2 of 3 

provided and ordained, on all taxable property, real, personal and mixed, situated within the corporate limits 
of the City of Crowley, Texas, and not exempt from taxation by the constitution of the State of Texas and 
valid state laws, an ad valorem tax rate of $0.594890 on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) assessed 
value of taxable property, which tax rate is apportioned and distributed as follows: 
 
A. For the purpose of defraying the current maintenance and operation expenses of the City (General 

Fund), a tax of $0.459734 on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) assessed value of all taxable 
property. 

 
B. For the purpose of creating a Debt Service Fund to pay the interest and principal on all outstanding 

indebtedness, a tax of $0.135156 on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) assessed value of all 
taxable property within the City which shall be applied to the payment of such interest and 
maturities of all outstanding bonded indebtedness. 

 
THIS TAX RATE WILL RAISE MORE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND 
OPERATIONS THAN LAST YEAR’S TAX RATE. 
 
THE TAX WILL EFFECTIVELY BE RAISED BY 9.2 PERCENT AND WILL 
DECREASE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS ON A 
$100,000 HOME BY APPROXIMATELY $66.37. 
 

SECTION 4. 
 
 All monies collected and hereby appropriated are set apart for the specific purposes indicated and 
the funds shall be accounted for in such a manner as to readily show balances at any time. 
 

SECTION 5. 
 
 All ad valorem taxes shall become due and payable on October 1, 2023, and all ad valorem taxes 
for the year shall become delinquent after January 31, 2024.  There shall be no discount for payment of 
taxes prior to said January 31, 2024.  Payment of such taxes shall be due in one full installment except as 
otherwise required by law.  A delinquent tax shall incur all penalty and interest authorized by State Law, 
Section 33.01 of the Property Tax Code. 
 

SECTION 6. 
 
 Taxes herein levied and uncollected as of January 1, 2024 shall be a first and prior lien against the 
property, which lien shall be superior and prior to all other liens. 
 

SECTION 7. 
 
 Taxes are payable at the offices of the County Tax Assessor-Collector.  The County shall have 
available all rights and remedies provided by law for the enforcement of the collection of taxes levied under 
this ordinance. 
 

SECTION 8. 
 
 Pursuant to the authority granted by Section 33.07 of the Texas Tax Code, in the event that 2023 
taxes and taxes for all subsequent years become delinquent on or after February 1 but not later than May 1 
of the year in which they become delinquent, and in the event such delinquent taxes are referred to an 
attorney for collection, an additional amount of twenty percent (20%) of the total amount of tax, penalty 

Commented [A1]: Not sure what numbers you use to compute 
this figure. 



 
Page 3 of 3 

and interest then due shall be added as collection costs to be paid by the taxpayer, for all taxes delinquent 
on or after July 1, 2024. 
 

SECTION 9. 
 
 Pursuant to the authority granted by Section 33.08 of the Texas Tax Code, the City further provides 
that all 2023 taxes and taxes for all subsequent years that become delinquent on or after June 1 of the year 
in which they become delinquent shall, in order to defray the costs of collection, incur an additional 20% 
of the delinquent tax, penalty and interest. 
 

SECTION 10. 
 
 Any and all ordinances, resolutions, rules, regulations, polices or provisions inconsistent or in 
conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby expressly repealed and rescinded to the extent of 
the inconsistency or conflict. 

 
SECTION 11. 

 
 It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that if any of the phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance since the same would 
have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such 
unconstitutional phrase, clauses, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

SECTION 12. 
 
 This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and it is so ordained. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS ________ DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2023. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Billy P. Davis, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rob Allibon, City Attorney 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Lori Watson MEETING DATE: September 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Deputy CM AGENDA ITEM: VII-4 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approval of the Crime Control and Prevention District 
FY2023-24 Budget Amendment #1. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance LW City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD KL FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

Pursuant to the Texas Local Government Code Section 363.205, the political subdivision's governing 
body must approve any budget amendments.  The Crime Control and Prevention District Board of 
Directors adopted the FY2023-24 budget on June 1, 2023.  During the city budget process, the police 
department requested an additional traffic officer to continue efforts to patrol and prevent accidents.  
Currently, 60% of the IT Administrator's salary is included in the CCPD budget.  An additional IT 
position was added this year to assist in keeping up with the needs and demands of the city.  The police 
department has the largest workload and demand on this department.  The attached budget includes 
60% of the IT salaries and the additional Traffic Officer.   
The amendment to the Johnson County Communications Contract for radios was received after the 
CCPD budget was adopted.  The prior year rate was $24.20 per radio per month.  The amended contract 
removed the dispatch fee and decreased the monthly cost to $16.64 per radio.   
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff respectfully requests approval of FY2023-24 Budget Amendment #1. 

FISCAL INFORMATION:  

The total increase in personnel costs is $144,538.  The decrease in the cost of the radio contract equals 
$13,245.  The prior revenue over expenditures was $605,286.  After the amendment, the net revenue 
over expenditures is $473,993. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  

●  CCPD FY2023-24 Budget Amendment #1 
●  Amended CCPD FY2023-24 Budget 

 



                                                                                                            

2023-24 Budget Revenue over Expenditures 605,286$           

Expenditures:
Full Time Salaries 116,215                
Fica 5,407                    
Medicare 1,264                    
TMRS 11,370                  
Insurance 10,282                  
Johnson County Broadband Contract (13,245)                 

Total Expenditures 131,293$           

Net Revenue over Expenditures 473,993$        

Crime Control and Prevention District 
FY 2023-24 Budget

Budget Amendment #1



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Lisa Hansen MEETING DATE: 9/21/2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: VII-5 

SUBJECT:  Consider revisions to Pay Classification Plan. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance LW City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  EDC: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Admin: 
   JT 

BACKGROUND:  
 
Staff is requesting to amend the Pay Classification Plan to include the additions and revision of the Staffing Plan.  
These positions were discussed during the 2023-2024 Budget Meetings. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff respectfully requests approval be given to the amendment of the Pay Classification Plan. 
 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  
 
Financial impact was discussed during the 2023-2024 Budget process. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 

• Revised Pay Classification Plan 
 

 
 



Minimum Midpoint Maximum

101 Annual $22,942.40 $33,716.80
Hourly (2080) $11.03 $16.21

102 Annual $24,086.40 $35,360.00 Recreation Wee Place Attendant
Hourly (2080) $11.58 $17.00

103 Annual $25,292.80 $37,128.00
Hourly (2080) $12.16 $17.85

104 Annual $26,540.80 $38,979.20
Hourly (2080) $12.76 $18.74

105 Annual $27,872.00 $40,934.40 Animal Control Attendant
Hourly (2080) $13.40 $19.68 Rec Center Facility Attendant/Custodian 

106 Annual $29,265.60 $42,889.60 Library Aide Entry Level Clerk
Hourly (2080) $14.07 $20.62 Recreation Clerk

107 Annual $30,742.40 $45,136.00 Animal Control Tech 
Hourly (2080) $14.78 $21.70 Recreation Center Lead Attendant

108 Annual $32,260.80 $47,382.40 Administrative Asst
Hourly (2080) $15.51 $22.78 Fleet Services

Library Senior Clerk
Police Records Clerk
Technical Services- Library

109 Annual $33,883.20 $49,753.60 Municipal Court Clerk
Hourly (2080) $16.29 $23.92 Parks Maintenance Worker

Public Works Maintenance 
Utility Billing Cashier
Water Maintenance 

110 Annual $35,568.00 $52,249.60 Building Maintenance
Hourly (2080) $17.10 $25.12

111 Annual $37,356.80 $54,870.40 Accounting Clerk
Hourly (2080) $17.96 $26.38 Animal Control Officer

Permit Tech
Senior Administrative Assistant

112 Annual $39,228.80 $57,595.20 Customer Service Specialist
Hourly (2080) $18.86 $27.69 Police Property & Evidence Tech

Recreation Center Assistant Manager

CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS
GENERAL PAY STRUCTURE

9/21/2023

Grade
Pay 

Frequency

Pay Range

Job Title



113 Annual $41,184.00 $60,486.40 Community Engagement Librarian
Hourly (2080) $19.80 $29.08 Water Maintenance Tech

114 Annual $43,243.20 $63,502.40 Children's Services Librarian
Hourly (2080) $20.79 $30.53 Code Enforcement Officer

Police Crime Scene & Property Tech
Senior Citizen's Program Coordinator
Special Events/Projects Coordinator
Telecommunications Officer

115 Annual $45,406.40 $66,684.80 Parks Maintenance Foreman
Hourly (2080) $21.83 $32.06 Public Works Foreman

Telecommunications Supervisor
Water Maintenance Foreman

116 Annual $47,673.60 $70,012.80 Animal Control Supervisor
Hourly (2080) $22.92 $33.66 Court Administrator/Clerk

Recreation Center Manager

117 Annual $50,065.60 $73,528.00
Hourly (2080) $24.07 $35.35

118 Annual $52,561.60 $77,188.80 IT Analyst
Hourly (2080) $25.27 $37.11 Media Relations Coordinator

Planner
Utility Billing Manager

119 Annual $55,203.20 $81,057.60
Hourly (2080) $26.54 $38.97

120 Annual $57,948.80 $85,113.60  
Hourly (2080) $27.86 $40.92

121 Annual $60,840.00 $89,356.80 Support Services Manager
Hourly (2080) $29.25 $42.96

122 Annual $63,897.60 $93,828.80 Senior Staff Account
Hourly (2080) $30.72 $45.11

123 Annual $67,080.00 $98,529.60 Building Facilities Manager
Hourly (2080) $32.25 $47.37 Downtown/Main Street Coordinator

124 Annual $70,449.60 $103,438.40
Hourly (2080) $33.87 $49.73

125 Annual $73,964.80 $108,617.60 Library Services Manager
Hourly (2080) $35.56 $52.22

126 Annual $77,667.20 $114,046.40 Assistant Finance Director
Hourly (2080) $37.34 $54.83 Asst Public Works Director

Assistant Utility Director
City Secretary
IT System Administrator
Personnel / HR Administrator



127 Annual $81,536.00 $119,745.60 Building Official
Hourly (2080) $39.20 $57.57

128 Annual $85,612.80 $125,736.00
Hourly (2080) $41.16 $60.45

129 Annual $89,897.60 $132,017.60
Hourly (2080) $43.22 $63.47

130 Annual $94,390.40 $138,632.00 Director of Projects & Utilities
Hourly (2080) $45.38 $66.65 Planning & Community Development Director

131 Annual $99,112.00 $145,558.40 Community Services Director
Hourly (2080) $47.65 $69.98 Deputy Fire Chief

132 Annual $104,083.20 $154,044.80 Fire Chief
Hourly (2080) $50.04 $74.06 Finance Director

Police Chief
Public Works Director

EXEMPT POSITIONS WITHOUT PAY GRADES

Assistant City Manager
Deputy City Manager

City Manager



Grade Title
PS1 Firefighter/EMT 22.51     65,729.20      23.19   67,714.80     23.89   69,758.80     24.61   71,861.20     25.35   74,022.00      26.11   76,241.20      26.89   78,518.80      27.70   80,884.00     28.53   83,307.60   29.39   85,818.80    

Firefighter/Paramedic 23.83     69,583.60      24.54   71,656.80     25.28   73,817.60     26.04   76,036.80     26.82   78,314.40      27.63   80,679.60      28.46   83,103.20      29.31   85,585.20     30.19   88,154.80   31.10   90,812.00    

Police Patrol 33.46     69,596.80      34.46   71,676.80     35.49   73,819.20     36.55   76,024.00     37.65   78,312.00      38.78   80,662.40      39.94   83,075.20      41.15   85,592.00     42.38   88,150.40   43.65   90,792.00    

Police ‐ Traffic Officer 33.46     69,596.80      34.46   71,676.80     35.49   73,819.20     36.55   76,024.00     37.65   78,312.00      38.78   80,662.40      39.94   83,075.20      41.15   85,592.00     42.38   88,150.40   43.65   90,792.00    

Police Community Service Officer 33.46     69,596.80      34.46   71,676.80     35.49   73,819.20     36.55   76,024.00     37.65   78,312.00      38.78   80,662.40      39.94   83,075.20      41.15   85,592.00     42.38   88,150.40   43.65   90,792.00    

Police CID 33.46     69,596.80      34.46   71,676.80     35.49   73,819.20     36.55   76,024.00     37.65   78,312.00      38.78   80,662.40      39.94   83,075.20      41.15   85,592.00     42.38   88,150.40   43.65   90,792.00    

Driver/Engineers 29.03     84,767.60      29.90   87,308.00     30.80   89,936.00     31.72   92,622.40    

Corporal 40.75     84,760.00      41.97   87,297.60     43.23   89,918.40     44.53   92,622.40    

Firefighter Lieutenant 31.41     91,717.20      32.35   94,462.00     33.32   97,294.40     34.32   100,214.40  

Police Sergeant 44.09     91,707.20      45.41   94,452.80     46.77   97,281.60     48.17   100,193.60  

Fire Battalion Chief (shift) 34.66     101,207.20    35.70   104,244.00   36.77   107,368.40  

Fire EMS Battalion Chief  48.66     101,212.80    50.12   104,249.60   51.62   107,369.60  

Police Lieutenant 48.66     101,212.80    50.12   104,249.60   51.62   107,369.60  

PS3

PS4

PS5

PS2

City of Crowley
Public Safety Step Plan

9/21/2023

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Lisa Hansen MEETING DATE: 9/21/2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: VII-6 

SUBJECT:  Discuss and consider adoption of Resolution R09-2023-399 of the City of Crowley 
amending the Staffing Plan. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance LW City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  EDC: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Admin: 
 JT 

BACKGROUND: 
 

 

Several new positions were created when the City Council approved the 2023-24 Fiscal Year budget.   Therefore, 
the Staffing Plan must be revised to reflect the changes.  The amendments consist of: 
 
(3) Full-Time Fire Battalion Chiefs and remove  (1) Full-Time Fire Marshal; 
(1) Full-Time Fire EMS Battalion Chief and remove  (1) Full-Time Fire EMS Coordinator; 
(1) Full-Time IT Analyst 
(1) Full-Time Library Senior Clerk; 
(1) Full-Time Downtown/Main Street Coordinator (funded by EDC) 
(1) Library Services Manager 
(1) Building Official 
(1) Full-Time Parks Maintenance Worker 
(2) Full-Time Police Patrol Officers 
(1) Full-Time Police Traffic Officer (funded by CCPD) 
(2) Full-Time Public Works Maintenance Workers 
(1) Full-Time Code Compliance Officer and remove  (1) Police Sworn Code Compliance Officer 
(1) Full-Time Senior Citizen’s Program Coordinator and remove (1) Part-Time Senior Citizen’s Program 
Coordinator 
(1) Full-Time Senior Staff Accountant  
(1) Full-Time Water Maintenance Foreman. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends adoption of the Resolution R09-2023-399 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  
 
Financial impact is included in the approved FY 2023-24 Annual Budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

 
• Resolution R09-2023-399 

 



RESOLUTION  NO. R09-2023-399 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CROWLEY APPROVING REVISIONS TO 
THE CITY OF CROWLEY STAFFING PLAN; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Crowley Staffing Plan indicates positions and the number of employees for each position; 
  

WHEREAS, under direction of the City Manager, Staff was to review current Staffing Plan to make necessary 
adjustments to be recommended to the City Council for consideration; 
  

WHEREAS, Staff hereby proposes additions and amendments to the existing Staffing Plan and the changes as 
follows:  

Staffing Plan  
Accounting Clerk 1   
Administrative Assistant 1  
Animal Control Attendant   
Animal Control Officer  2   
Animal Control Supervisor 1   
Animal Control Tech 2  

Assistant City Manager 1   
Assistant Finance Director 1   
Assistant Public Works Director  1   
Assistant Utility Director 1  
Building Maintenance 1  
Building Official 1  
Building Facilities Manager 1  
Children’s Services Librarian 1   
City Manager 1   
City Secretary 1   
Clerk of the Municipal Court / Court Administrator 1   
Code Enforcement Officer 1  
Community Engagement Librarian 1   
Community Services Director 1   
Customer Service Specialist 1  
Deputy City Manager 1  
Deputy Fire Chief 1   
Director of Projects & Utilities 1  
Downtown/Main Street Coordinator 1  
Finance Director   
Fire Battalion Chief 3  
Fire EMS Battalion Chief  1  
Fire Chief  1   
Firefighter /Paramedic 21   
Firefighter Lieutenant 6   
Firefighter/ Driver Engineer  6   
Firefighter/EMT    
Fleet Services 1   
IT Analyst 1  
IT Systems Administrator 1  
Library Clerk - Entry Level 1 1.775 
Library - Senior Clerk  1 0.675 
Library Services Manager 1  
Media Relations Coordinator  1   
Municipal Court Clerk  1   
Parks Maintenance Foreman 1   
Parks Maintenance Worker 5   
Permit Tech 1  
Personnel / HR Administrator 1   
Planner 1  



Planning & Community Development Director 1   
Police Chief  1   
Police Community Liaison Officer  1   
Police Patrol Corporal / Detective Corporal 5  
Police Crime Scene & Property Tech 1   
Police Detective 2   
Police Lieutenant  2   
Police Patrol 16   
Police Patrol Sergeant 4   
Police Property & Evidence Tech   
Police Records Clerk  1   
Police Traffic Officer 2   
Public Works Director  1   
Public Works Maintenance Foreman 1   
Public Works Maintenance Worker 5   
Recreation Center Assistant Manager 1   
Rec Center Facility Attendant/Custodian 1  
Recreation Center Lead Attendant 2  
Recreation Center Manager 1   
Recreation Clerk   3.50 
Recreation Wee-Place Attendant   .75 
Senior Administrative Assistant 3   
Senior Citizen’s Program Coordinator 1  
Senior Staff Accountant 1  
Special Events/Project Coordinator 1   
Support Services Manager 1  
Tech Services – Library  1  
Telecommunications Officer (Dispatcher)  8   
Telecommunications Supervisor 1  
Utility Billing Cashier  1   
Utility Billing Manager 1   
Water Maintenance  Foreman 1   
Water Maintenance Tech 2   
Water Maintenance Worker 4   
    

 155 6.700 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS, that these revisions to the City of 
Crowley Staffing Plan are approved. 

 
PRESENTED AND APPROVED ON THIS THE 21st DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023, AT A REGULAR MEETING OF 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS. 
 
 CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Billy P. Davis, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 3 
 

PRESENTER: Rachel Roberts MEETING 
DATE: Sept. 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development AGENDA ITEM: VII-7 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approval of a request by Deer Creek Estates for a variance 
from city code Section 102-122, “Schedule for Permanent Signs” to allow a 
reader board sign in an R-2 single family residential zoning district 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev RR PW  
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  EDC: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Admin: 
  

BACKGROUND:  
Crowley’s sign code permits reader board signs in commercial zoning districts only. Deer Creek Estates is 
located in the R-2 single family residential zoning district; the Deer Creek home owners’ association 
maintains a monument sign with a reader board that was installed before the current sign code was adopted. 
The existing sign requires changing out letters manually, and after it was recently damaged, the HOA 
decided it would like to replace the existing sign with a digital sign, which is not permitted under the sign 
code. The HOA has requested a variance to allow the digital sign. 
 
 
 VARIANCE CRITERIA 

City code Sec. 102-61(2) describes what criteria the City Council shall consider when determining whether 
to grant a variance. The criteria are listed below. 
 

a. Special conditions exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or building involved and are 
not applicable to other lands, building, or structures in the same zoning district;  
 

There are no special conditions peculiar to this property or sign. Neither the land nor the existing sign 
are of unusual size, shape, or location.  
 
It is unfortunate that the existing sign was damaged, but this is no different than if another non-
conforming sign were to be damaged. Repairing a non-conforming sign is permitted. However, there 
are no special conditions in place that would warrant granting a variance to allow a installation of a new 
non-conforming sign. 

 
 

b. The strict interpretation of the provisions of the chapter would deprive the applicant of rights 
commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district under the terms of this 
chapter;  

 
Other properties in single family residential zoning districts are not permitted to have reader board signs. 
Therefore, not allowing Deer Creek Estates HOA to have a reader board sign does not deprive the HOA 
of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district. 



Page 2 of 3 

 
c. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant and 

such conditions and circumstances do not merely constitute a pecuniary hardship or 
inconvenience; 
 

The conditions and circumstances here are a desire by the HOA for a different sign, perhaps to avoid 
having to change out messages by hand, which is certainly understandable. However, this falls into the 
category of “inconvenience,” which doesn’t meet the conditions for a variance. 
 
d. Granting the variance will meet the objectives and intent of this chapter and not injure the 

adjoining property owners or be detrimental to the public welfare;  
 

If the digital message is static (e.g., no scrolling or flashing, but merely a static message in place of the 
existing analog static message), it will not injure adjoining property owners or be detrimental to the public 
welfare, provide the lighting is dim enough not to spillover onto any residential properties or cause 
distractions or other dangers to drivers, and as long as it doesn’t go against the intent of the International 
Dark Sky model ordinance (required for non-residential outdoor lighting). 
 
However, under the sign regulations, no residential districts are permitted to have reader board signs. Staff 
interprets this to mean Council considered reader board signs to be commercial in nature and not appropriate 
for residential zoning districts. Digital reader board signs, in particular, are usually found at commercial 
locations rather than residential. The staff interpretation of the sign code is that granting the variance does 
not meet the intent of the chapter. 

 
e. The request will be the minimum variance necessary to alleviate the special hardship or 

practical difficulties faced by the applicant in meeting the requirements of this chapter; and  
 

There is no special hardship in this situation. 
 

f. Granting the variance will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of Ch. 102.  
 

Because there is no hardship and because the applicant is not being deprived of rights enjoyed by other 
properties in the same district, staff does not consider granting a variance in this case to be in harmony with 
the sprit and purpose of Ch. 102.  
 
The sign code allows one other criterion for Council to consider: 

 
Sec. 102-61(2)(g):  It is not the intention of these criteria to discourage innovation. It is 
entirely conceivable that signage proposals could be made that, while clearly 
nonconforming to this chapter and thus not allowable under these criteria, have obvious 
merit in not only being appropriate to the particular site or location, but also in making a 
positive contribution to the visual environment. 

 
The proposed sign is not innovative; it is a standard reader board sign set in a standard residential monument 
sign. In staff’s opinion, the sign requested does not have “obvious merit” as described above. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Because there is no hardship in this case, and because there are no special conditions unique to this location, 
staff recommend denying the variance request. In variance cases, the burden is on the applicant to show how 
they meet the criteria, rather than on the city to show how the criteria are not met. 
 



Page 3 of 3 

If after reviewing this request, Council would like to allow reader board signs in residential zoning districts, 
staff could prepare an amendment to the sign code that would allow this change and bring it to Council for 
consideration at a future meeting. 
 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

n/a 

ATTACHMENTS:  

• Sign variance application with pictures of existing sign and proposed sign 
• Aerial view of the property where the sign is located 

 



C)Cityof CITY OF CROWLEY 

Sign Variance Application rowley 
�

Community Development Department 

Case# -------

(to be assigned by City Staff) 

Applicant & Owner Information

Applicant Name: l= t a O ¼ f3 �_q 6_ Company: D e e. r Cr c= e k f 5 :f: a f es 
Applicant Address: :Sa O O e e, r:: i/4� k Dr: City: Cr O vJ (ej State:' X

ZIPCode: '1�03, TelephoneNo: J..S:'1-1lS:-- 'fo'1C( Email 

I prefer to be notified of the City Council decision by (choose one): [!3"'Email or D Mail

(If applicant is not property owner, please provide property owner information below) 

Property Owner:------------------------------------
Applicant Address: _____________ _ City: _______ _ State: _______ _ 

ZIP Code: _______ Telephone No: _________ _ 

Property Information 

Project Name: D ,· 9, ±al s,· � n
Project Address: 5: O O Q C" � c Cr ee k pr. 

Email
-------------

Lot: ___________ Block: __________ Addition: Oeet Creek E-sfates
OR Survey: ________________ Tract(s): __________________ _ 

IF OWNER IS NOT THE APPLICANT: 

• The owner's authorization at the bottom of this application must be signed by the owner and notarized.

• If the owner is not the applicant, all communication regarding this request will be sent only to the applicant. If the owner has 
designated an authorized representative, all communication regarding this request will be sent to the owner's authorized
representative. The decision of the City Council shall be final of all sign variance requests.

In accordance with the provisions of t�gn �in
i

e, app�is � k�tg,4he k.oif1J;:,/ cl, Council to grant the following
variance request (this section should deJ9ibf]!Je tion(s) c[Jbe !ig�rQ� f&rt� �

7 

are requesting a variance and 
what variance you would like the Council to grant; p ease be specific). 

l

0

t'\ a rec.en+ s+-orm., cod heeds fo be-
was damaqed. 
r:r:p /aced.

201 E.Main • Crowley,Texas • 76036 • Phone817-297-2201 • Fax817-297-4911 • www.ci.crowley.tx.us 



Sign Variance Application (cont.) 

• A variance shall not be granted to relieve a self-created or personal hardship, nor shall it be based solely on economic
gain or loss.

• No variance shall be granted if it conflicts with the spirit of the ordinance.

• In order to make a finding of hardship and to grant a variance, the Crowley City Council must find the following conditions to
be true.

Please describe below how your request meets the following conditions. If needed, you may use additional pages. 

A. Special conditions exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or building involved and are not applicable to other lands,
buildings, or structures in the same zoning district:

'/es. We alrea&j bave be-e.o 

B. The strict interpretation of the provisions of the chapter would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other
properties in the same zoning district under the terms of this chapter:

�es, be cau.se our cu rren+ SCJf\ was 'granJfathereJ" 
l n, w c. siMpl

1 
,uant +o rep faee ,+.

C. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant and such conditions and
circumstances do not merely constitute a pecuniary hardship or inconvenience

Coerce.-+ 

D. Granting the variance will meet the objectives and intent of this chapter and not injure the adjoining property owners or be
detrimental to the public welfare

Corrcc-'9 

E. The request will be the minimum variance necessary to alleviate the special hardship or practical difficulties faced by the 
applicant in meeting the requirements of the city's sign code.

201 E. Main • Crowley, Texas • 76036 • Phone817 297-2201 • Fax817-297 4911 • www.ci.crowley.tx.us 





Dear City of Crowley, 

My wife and I moved to Crowley seven years ago, and we absolutely LOVE living here. We have 

never before lived in an area that is so welcoming and enjoyable. Thank you for all you do to 

take care of this wonderful city. 

I am writing today to request a variance on your policy that does not allow digital signs in 

residential areas. I live in Deer Creek Estates, and I am on the board for the HOA. We have a 

"reader board" sign that was recently damaged in a storm. Rather than spend the money to have 

it repaired, we would like to replace it with a digital sign. We are not asking for a new sign where 

there was not one before. We are simply asking to replace the sign we have had for thirty years 

with a digital sign. 

We understand the reasoning for not wanting digital signs in residential areas. Drivers could be 

distracted. However, this sign is at the entrance to our community (where there are no houses), 

and drivers are already in the habit of looking over to see what is on our sign. We also understand 

your general policy that, where digital signs are allowed, they are not to be "flashy" with 

constantly changing graphics. If you allow this variance, the replacement sign would be the same 

size as our current sign, and a simple design (see attached photos). This type of sign would be 

easier to read and less distracting than our reader board sign. 

Thank you for your consideration to this request. And, thank you again for all the work you do 

to make Crowley a wonderful place to live. 

Sincerely, 

Frank Bugh/Deer Creek Estates 









 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Carol Konhauser 
City Secretary MEETING DATE: September 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: VII-8 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approving Resolution R09-2023-398, a resolution 
approving a variance for an Alcoholic Beverage Permit Application submitted 
by Rouse Holding Group, LLC, for the business located at 117 S Texas St, 
known as Moon Tower Pizza and; authorizing the City Secretary to certify the 
TABC permit application. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance LW City 
Sec cck Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

City Ordinance 04-2022-458 and Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code Section 109.33(e) allows a governing 
body of a city that has enacted a distance regulation on alcohol permits to grant a variance if they 
determine the enforcement of the regulation is not in the best interest of the public, constitutes waste or 
inefficient use of land or other resources, creates an undue hardship on an applicant, does not serve its 
intended purpose, is not effective or necessary, or for any other reason after considering the health, 
safety, and welfare of the public. 
The owner of Moon Tower Pizza, is in the process of submitting an application for an on-premise Wine 
and Malt Beverage Retailer's Permit.  The application requires the City Secretary to certify the location 
of the business is in a "wet" area and is not prohibited by charter or ordinance.  Measurement from the 
front door of Moon Tower Pizza to the main entrance of the church located at 116 Pecan St is 
approximately 215 feet.  The owners are requesting approval of a variance to allow the restaurant to 
sell alcoholic beverages (mixed beverage).   
Staff believes allowing the sale of alcohol would not have a negative impact on the church.  Allowing 
the sale of alcohol may help to increase the customer base and therefore generate more sales.  Staff 
believes it would create an undue hardship on the owners. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff requests councils' consideration and approval. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

None. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  Alcoholic Beverage Permit Application - Moon Tower Pizza 
 

























Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R09-2023-398 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CROWLEY, 
TEXAS, GRANTING A VARIANCE TO THE DISTANCE REGULATIONS 
FOR AN ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERMIT APPLICATION; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY SECRETARY TO CERTIFY THE TEXAS 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE COMMISSION APPLICATION 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Crowley (the “City”) is a home rule city acting under its charter 
adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5, of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 
9 of the Local Government Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code Section 109.33(e) allows a governing 
body of a city that has enacted a distance regulation on alcohol permits to grant a variance if they 
determine the enforcement of the regulation is not in the best interest of the public, constitutes 
waste or inefficient use of land or other resources, creates an undue hardship on an applicant, does 
not serve its intended purpose, is not effective or necessary, or for any other reason after 
considering the health, safety and welfare of the public; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 7, 2022, the city adopted Ordinance 04-2022-458, authorizing the 
City Council to grant a variance to the distance regulations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City received an alcoholic beverage permit application from the Rouse 
Holding Group, LLC, for the business located at 117 S Texas St, Crowley, Texas, DBA Moon 
Tower Pizza, and determined the business was approximately 215 feet from a church located at 
116 Pecan Steet, Crowley, Texas; and  
 
 WHEREAS, upon review of the alcoholic beverage permit application, and after 
considering the health, safety and welfare of the public, the City Council finds that enforcement 
of the distance regulations is not in the best interest of the public; doing so would create an undue 
hardship on the applicant; it does not serve its intended purpose; and is not effective or necessary.  
Therefore, this variance should be granted. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CROWLEY, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. 
 
 That the alcoholic beverage permit application submitted by Rouse Holding Group, LLC, 
for the business located at 117 S Texas Steet, Crowley, Texas, also known as Moon Tower Pizza, 
is granted a variance to the distance regulations.  
 

SECTION 2. 
 
 The City Secretary is hereby authorized to sign the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission 
Permit Application submitted by Rouse Holding Group, LLC for the business located at 117 S 
Texas St, Crowley, Texas.  



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
SECTION 3. 

 
 This resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 21st DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2023. 
 
     CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Billy P. Davis, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Carol Konhauser 
City Secretary MEETING DATE: September 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: VII-9 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider canceling the Regular scheduled meeting of the Crowley 
City Council for October 5, 2023 due to lack of quorum. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance LW City 
Sec cck Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

The TML Conference will be held this year the week of October 3 - October 6, 2023.  As a quorum of 
the Council plan to attend this conference, it is recommended the Crowley City Council for October 5, 
2023, be cancelled. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

None. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  None 
 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Carol Konhauser 
City Secretary MEETING DATE: September 21, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: VII-10 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approving Ordinance No 09-2023-506, amending 
Appendix A, Schedule of Rates, Fees, and Charges, Section (32) Public 
Records Charges, by increasing notary service fees and deleting obsolete or 
duplicated fees. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec cck Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

Texas House Bill 255 increased the maximum fees allowed to be charged for notary services from $6.00 
to $10.00, effective September 1, 2023.  Staff is requesting to update the fee schedule to reflect these 
rates.   
 
Additionally, there are fees listed under the Public Records Charges that are no longer utilized and/or 
duplicated in other sections of the fee schedule.   
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval Ordinance 09-2023-506. 
 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

Increase notary service charge. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  Ordinance 09-2023-506 
 



Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO.  09-2023-506 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CROWLEY, TEXAS, AMENDING APPENDIX A, SCHEDULE OF RATES, 
FEES AND CHARGES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO UPDATE 
THE NOTARY FEES AND DELETE OBSOLETE OR DUPLICATED FEES 
LISTED UNDER SECTION (32) PUBLIC RECORDS CHARGES; 
PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE CUMULATIVE OF 
ALL ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Crowley, Texas, is a home rule City acting under its charter 
adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 
9 of the Local Government Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the fee schedule of the City of Crowley, has been codified as Appendix A, 
Schedule of Rates, Fees, and Charges, of the Crowley Code of Ordinances; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Appendix A of the Code of Ordinances establishes various fees for City 
services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Texas House Bill 255 increased the maximum fees a notary is allowed to 
charge effective September 1, 2023; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to amend its schedule of fees by amending the 
Notary fee listed in Section (32), "Public Records Charges, of Appendix A, Schedule of Rates, 
Fees, and Charges; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CROWLEY, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. 
 
 That Section (32) Public Records Charges, in Appendix A:  Schedule of Rates, Fees and 
Charges of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Crowley, Texas, be and is hereby amended as 
follows, which is incorporated by reference herein: 
 

(32) Public records charges. 

Miscellaneous:  
Copies (standard size) (per page)  $0.10  
Copies (nonstandard size) (per page)  $0.50  
Diskette  $1.00  
VHS videocassette  $2.50  
Audiocassette  $1.00  
Official maps of city (zoning/water/street), each  $5.00  
Fax fees:  



Page 2 of 3 

Transmitted—Locally (per page)  $0.10  
Transmitted—Long distance (per page)  $0.50  
Transmitted—Different area code (per page)  $1.00  
Notary fee (per document)  $6.0010.00  
NSF (non-sufficient funds) fee  $30.00  
Police reports (except accident reports)  GSC*  
Accident reports (per copy)  $6.00  
Fingerprints:  
Nonresident (per card)  $10.00  
Resident  N/C  
Fire/ambulance reports  GSC*  
Abatement liens (plus labor, plus equipment, plus filing fees)  See Sec. 22 

of this fee 
schedule  

Municipal court transcription preparation fees  $25.00  
Copies (per page)  $0.10  
Building/structure moving (if escort is required)  $40.00  
* Any charges for public information not listed will be charged according to the general services 
commission charge schedule.  

 
SECTION 2. 

 
All other sections and subsections of Appendix A, Schedule of Rates, Fees and Charges are to 
remain as.    

SECTION 3. 
 

 This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of ordinances of the City of Crowley, 
Texas, except where the provisions of this ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions of 
such ordinances, in which event the conflicting provisions of such ordinances are hereby repealed.  
 

SECTION 4. 
 
 It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, clause 
sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect 
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since 
the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

SECTION 5. 
 
 The City Secretary of the City of Crowley is hereby directed to publish in the official 



Page 3 of 3 

newspaper of the City of Crowley, the caption, penalty clause, and effective date clause of this 
ordinance as authorized by the City Charter and Section 52.013 of the Local Government Code. 
 

SECTION 6. 
 
This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, and it is so ordained. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 7th DAY OF September 2023. 
 
      CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Mayor, Billy P. Davis 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Rob Allibon, City Attorney 


	00000a 00002023 Cover Sheet
	00000b 00002023 Attendance
	00000c 00002023 cc agenda New
	000a 09212023 Proclamation National Night Out
	000b 09212023 Fire Prevention Week 2023
	01a 09212023 Staff Report for CC meeting minutes
	01b 00002023 Minutes for CC Meeting 09112023
	01b 00002023 Minutes for CC Meeting
	03a 09212023 EDC Public Hearing communicator
	03b 09212023 2023-24 final EDC budget
	04a 09212023 Communicator for Budget PH
	04b 09212023 2023-24 Budget summaries for PH
	cover amended budget
	general fund summary year end
	general fund summary 
	debt service year end
	debt service
	water fund summary year end
	water fund summary
	Stormwater fund summary year e 
	Stormwater fund summary 

	06a 09212023 Communicator for Tax Rate PH
	06b 09212023 Tax Rate Public Hearing Notice
	07a 09212023 Staff report SUP-2023-003 CBD
	07b 09212023 SUP-2023-003 location
	07c SUP-2023-003 ordinance (CBD) ORD 09-2023-507
	09a 09212023 Communicator for Budget ordinance
	09b 09212023 Ordinance 09-2023-504 FY 2023-24 Budget
	09c 09212023 2023-24 Budget detail Exhibit A
	budget cover
	budget cover (2)
	summary
	revenues 2
	departmental expenditures
	Debt Service fund
	water revenues
	water exp dept
	Storm Water Fund

	10a 09212023 Communicator for property tax ratification
	11a 09212023 Communicator for ad valorem tax ordinance
	11b 09212023 Ordinance 09-2023-505 Tax Rate Adoption
	12a 09212023 Communicator for CCPD Budget amend #1
	12b 09212023 2023-24 CCPD Budget amendment #1
	14a 09212023 Staff Report Cncl Comm Pay Classification Plan
	14b1 2023 Pay classification plan 092123
	14b-2 2023 Pay classification plan 092123
	15a 09212023 Cncl Comm Staffing Plan
	15b 09212023 Staffing Plan Resolution
	16a 09212023 Staff Report - Sign Variance
	16b 09212023 Deer Creek sign variance application_Redacted
	16c 09212023 Aerial view of sign location, Deerk Creek Estates
	17a 09212023 Staff Report Alcoholic Bev Permit Variance
	17b 09212023 Moon Tower Pizza Alcoholic Beverage Permit Application
	17c 09212023 R09-2023-398 Alcoholic Beverage Permit Variance Approval - Moon Tower Pizza
	18a 09212023 Staff Report for canceling Oct 6 meeting
	19a 09212023 Staff Report for Fee schedule update - Notary fees
	19b 09212023 AppendixA Fee Schedule Notary Fees

	ValuationProposedTaxRate: 0.594890
	ProposedBodyOf: City of Crowley
	ProposedTaxRate: 0.594890
	NoNewRevenueTaxRate: 0.556294
	VoterApprovalTaxRate: 0.579697
	DeMinimisTaxRate: 0.594890
	LastYear: 2022
	TaxingUnitName: City of Crowley
	TaxYear: 2023
	HearingDate: 09/21/2023 (CT) 07:00 PM
	HearingAddress: City Hall, 201 E. Main Street, Crowley, TX
	AcceptProposal: Mayor Billy Davis, Jesse Johnson, Jim Hirth, Jerry Beck
	RejectProposal: 
	AbstainedProposal: 
	Absent: Scott Gilbreath, Johnny Shotwell
	TaxingUnitNameCalc: City of Crowley
	TotalTaxRate2019: $0.645203
	TotalTaxRate2020: $0.594890
	TotalTaxRateChange: 7.79% decrease
	AvarageHomesteadTaxableValue2019: $212,160
	AvarageHomesteadTaxableValue2020: $245,680
	AvarageHomesteadTaxableValueChange: 15.79% increase
	TaxOnAvarageHomestead2019: $1,368
	TaxOnAvarageHomestead2020: $1,461
	TaxOnAvarageHomesteadChange: 6.79% increase
	TotalTaxLevy2019: $8,968,559
	TotalTaxLevy2020: $9,840,953
	TotalTaxLevyChange: 9.72% increase
	TaxingUnitNameMaintain: City of Crowley
	PhoneNumber: (817) 297-2201
	EmailAddress: lwatson@ci.crowley.tx.us
	WebsiteUrl: www.ci.crowley.tx.us
	TaxingUnitNameNoWebSite: 
	PhoneNumberNoWebSite: 
	EmailAddressNoWebSite: 
	HealthCareTaxingUnitName: 
	HealthCareLastYear: 
	HealthCareTaxYear: 
	DefenseTaxingUnitName: 
	DefenseSpentLastYear: 
	DefenseLastYear: 
	DefenseTaxYear: 
	DefenseExpendituresIncreasedBy: 
	DefenseNoNewRevenueIncreasedBy: 
	HospitalTaxingUnitName: 
	HospitalSpentLastYear: 
	HospitalLastYear: 
	HospitalTaxYear: 
	HospitalExpendituresIncreasedBy: 
	HospitalNoNewRevenueIncreasedBy: 
	CriminalCountyName: 
	CriminalNoNewRevenueIncreasedBy: 
	CriminalSpentLastYear: 
	HealthCareLastYearSpent: 
	HealthCareExpendituresIncreasedBy: 
	HealthCareNoNewRevenueIncreasedBy: 


